

VIRGINIA:

At a regular meeting of the Washington County Board of Supervisors held Tuesday, June 14, 2011, at 6:30 p.m., at the County Administration Building in Abingdon, Virginia the following were present:

PRESENT:

Dulcie M. Mumpower, Chair
 Odell Owens, Vice Chair
 Nicole M. Price
 Kenneth O. Reynolds
 Joseph C. Straten

Mark K. Reeter, County Administrator
 Lucy E. Phillips, County Attorney
 Mark W. Seamon, Accounting Manager
 Naoma A. Norris, Recording Clerk

ABSENT:

Phillip B. McCall
 Thomas G. Taylor

1. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order by Ms. Dulcie M. Mumpower, Chair of the Board, who welcomed everyone in attendance.

Ms. Mumpower noted that Supervisors Phillip McCall and Tom Taylor will not be in attendance.

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance

Supervisor Odell Owens gave the Invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Approval of Agenda

On motion of Mr. Reynolds, second by Mr. Straten, it was resolved to approve the agenda as presented.

The vote on this motion was as follows: (5-0)

<i>Ms. Mumpower</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Owens</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Ms. Price</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Reynolds</i>	<i>Aye</i>

Mr. Straten *Aye*

4. Consent Agenda:

On motion of Mr. Owens, second by Mr. Straten, the Board acted to approve items a, b, c and d of the Consent Agenda as set forth below.

a. Approval of Minutes:

1. May 24, 2011 Regular Meeting

b. Approval of Routine Financial Matters:

1. Supplemental Appropriation – Washington County Treasurer’s Office

c. Award of Bids and Approval of Contracts:

1. Award of Contract for E-911 PSAP Call Taking Solution to Wireless Communications, Inc.

d. Authorization of Routine Business Matters:

1. Approval of Personnel Committee Recommendations Regarding Employee Recognitions and Administrative Division Departmental & Position Title Changes

The vote on this motion was as follows: (5-0)

Ms. Mumpower *Aye*

Mr. Owens *Aye*

Ms. Price *Aye*

Mr. Reynolds *Aye*

Mr. Straten *Aye*

5. Public Hearings:

a. Request(s) for Special Exception Permit:

1. Roger Yuhasz on behalf of Sarah Yuhasz, Administrator for the Estate of Roger Yuhasz, Property Tax Map Number 067A1-A-24: Request for a Special Exception Permit to place a manufactured home on .76 acres of property located at the intersection of State Route 797 (Sherwood Drive) and Holly Lane in the V (Village Zone), Monroe Magisterial District

County Zoning and Subdivision Official Cathie Freeman addressed the Board and provided an overview of the proceedings before the Washington County Planning Commission at their May 23, 2011 meeting in regards to the request of Roger Yuhasz on behalf of Sarah Yuhasz, Administrator for the Estate of Roger Yuhasz, for a Special Exception Permit to place a manufactured home on .76 acres of property located on Holly Lane in Meadowview, VA. Ms. Yuhasz presented a request to the Planning Commission to sell property of her father, Roger Yuhasz, who is deceased. She wishes to sell the property to an elderly gentleman that is downsizing, and who would like to place a manufactured home on the site.

Ms. Freeman further explained that several adjoining property owners addressed the Planning Commission and voiced concerns about the type of manufactured home that would be placed on the property. They also spoke of their concerns about the potential of debris and trash being placed around the manufactured home. The Planning Commission discussed the request at length, particularly discussing a requirement that the manufactured home would have to be owner occupied. Ms. Freeman advised the Board that the Village Zone permits any of the three types of manufactured homes (single wide, doublewide or tri-wide).

Ms. Freeman explained the Planning Commission, on a 5-2 vote, recommended approval of the Special Exception Permit with stipulations that the manufactured home be owner occupied, and that all code requirements be met.

Discussions ensued among the Board and Ms. Freeman.

Ms. Mumpower opened the public hearing and invited comments in support of and in opposition to the request for Special Exception Permit.

There being no comments, Ms. Mumpower declared the public hearing closed.

On motion of Mr. Owens, second by Mr. Reynolds, the Board acted to follow the recommendation of the Washington County Planning Commission and approve the request of Roger Yuhasz on behalf of Sarah Yuhasz, Administrator for the Estate of Roger Yuhasz for a Special Exception Permit to place a manufactured home on .76 acres of property located at the intersection of State Route 797 (Sherwood Drive) and Holly Lane in the V (Village Zone), Monroe Magisterial District with the stipulations the owner of the manufactured home must also be the occupant, and that health department approval and other code requirements be met.

The vote on this motion was as follows: (5-0)

<i>Ms. Mumpower</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Owens</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Ms. Price</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Reynolds</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Straten</i>	<i>Aye</i>

- b. Public Hearing and Consideration of Adoption of an Ordinance to Amend Chapter 22 of the Code of the County of Washington, Virginia to Reapportion Election District Populations by Revision of the Election District Boundaries for Election of members of the Board of Supervisors and Members of the School Board

Ms. Phillips addressed the Board and provided introductory remarks. Ms. Phillips recognized Redistricting Committee member, Beulah Lambert, who was in attendance.

Ms. Phillips explained the Redistricting Committee worked very hard on this project. The Committee met several times to work on revising election district boundaries with the goal of equally distributing population in district boundaries that were as proportionate as possible based on recent US Census Data. The proposed new election district boundaries and proposed ordinance were placed on the County's website, and at the County Administration Building for public review. In addition, copies of the maps showing the proposed election districts were placed in the lobby of the County Administration Building,

the County Courthouse, the County Building that houses the Treasurer and Commissioner of Revenue, and the Department of Motor Vehicles Building where the Voter Registrar office is located.

Ms. Phillips explained that Supervisor Tom Taylor has requested a minor district boundary line adjustment as shown on a map labeled "District D – Monroe" placed at Board stations. The proposed ordinance was revised accordingly. Mr. Taylor requested that 14.8 miles to an intersection with Greenway Creek; then north on Greenway Creek to intersection with Route 706 (Rivermont Drive); then west on Route 706 for 1.4 miles to the intersection with Route 705 (Honey Locust Road) be all placed in the Monroe District. The result of this request is all the area the north of the Middle Fork of the Holston River between Cedar Creek and Greenway Road will be placed in the D District (Monroe) instead of being split between C and E Districts (Madison and Taylor Districts respectively).

Ms. Phillips stated she recommends adoption of the proposed ordinance based on the work of the Redistricting Committee, along with changes proposed by Mr. Taylor.

Ms. Mumpower opened the public hearing and invited comments in support of and in opposition to the proposed ordinance.

The following individuals addressed the Board:

- Mr. Richard MacBeth inquired about the deviation in population in the Harrison District, and asked the reason for the disparity. He also questioned if a portion of both Harrison and Jefferson District residents would vote at Abingdon Elementary School since under the proposed election districts, the school will be moved from the Harrison District into the Jefferson District.

Ms. Phillips explained the Redistricting Committee worked on the proposed new boundary lines. She further explained that judicial opinions have established that a range of plus or minus five percent deviation from the goal population is acceptable. The deviation in the proposed Harrison Election District is within the acceptable limit.

Ms. Mumpower commented that County GIS Consultant Brandon Moore indicated this redistricting process was very difficult, and the next one in ten years would be more difficult. She further explained that the polling places are controlled by the Washington County Voter Registrar's Office.

Ms. Price noted that Voter Registrar Mary Ann Compton was part of the Redistricting Committee Meetings.

There being no further comments, Ms. Mumpower declared the public hearing closed.

Further discussions ensued among the Board concerning the proposed election districts.

On motion of Mr. Straten, second by Mr. Owens, the Board acted to adopt the following ordinance with comments from Tom Taylor:

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 22 OF THE CODE OF THE COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, VIRGINIA, TO REAPPORTION ELECTION DISTRICT POPULATIONS BY REVISION OF THE ELECTION DISTRICT BOUNDARIES FOR ELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND MEMBERS OF THE SCHOOL BOARD

WHEREAS Article VII, Section 5 of the Virginia Constitution and Section 24.2-304.1 of the 1950 Code of Virginia, as amended, mandates that the governing body of each locality that conducts local elections by district shall reapportion representation among the districts in order to give, as nearly as is practicable, equal representation on the basis of population; and

WHEREAS Section 24.2-304.1(C) of the 1950 Code of Virginia, as amended, mandates that the governing body shall use the most recent decennial population figures for the county from the United States Bureau of the Census when calculating populations for each election district; and

WHEREAS the Washington County Board of Supervisors finds that, based on the most recent United States Bureau of the Census data, the populations in the election districts defined by this ordinance give, as nearly as is practicable, equal representation on the basis of population and the election district boundaries described herein comply with all requirements of law; and

WHEREAS by Order of the United States District Court for the District of Columbia entered on September 23, 2008, the County of Washington, Virginia, and the towns contained therein; being the Towns of Abingdon, Damascus, Glade Spring, and a portion of Saltville; were held, pursuant to Section 4(b) of the Voting Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1973b(b), to be exempt from coverage under Section 5 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 1973(c).

NOW THEREFORE, be it ORDAINED by the Board of Supervisors of Washington County, Virginia that, in accord with sections 24.2-306 and 15.2-1427 of the 1950 Code of Virginia, as amended, Chapter 22 of the 1997 Code of Washington County is amended as set out below, provided:

- 1. THAT this ordinance shall become effective immediately; and*
- 2. THAT should any section or provision of this ordinance be decided to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section or provision of this ordinance or the Code of Washington County, Virginia, (2002, as amended); and*
- 3. THAT this Ordinance shall repeal and supercede all ordinances or parts thereof which purport to deal with matters covered by this Ordinance and are inconsistent with this Ordinance.*
- 4. NOW THEREFORE, Chapter 22 of the Code of Washington County, Virginia, is amended, as follows:*

*Chapter 22 ELECTIONS**

Article I. In General

Secs. 22-1--22-30. Reserved.

Article II. Election Districts

Sec. 22-31. Election districts established.

Sec. 22-32. Election district boundaries; polling places.

Sec. 22-33. Absentee voter election district.

Secs. 22-34--22-55. Reserved.

Article III. Board of Supervisors

Secs. 22-44 – 22-55. Reserved.

Article IV. School Board

Sec. 22-56. School board elections generally.

Sec. 22-57. Number of members.

Sec. 22-58. Terms.

Sec. 22-59. Date of elections.

ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL

Secs. 22-1--22-30. Reserved.

ARTICLE II. ELECTION DISTRICTS

Sec. 22-31. Election districts established.

Election districts A-20012011, B-20012011, C-20012011, D-20012011, E-20012011, F-20012011 and G-20012011 in the county, with the boundary lines and names thereof respectively as constituted in section 22-32, are established and declared to be the election districts of the county for purposes of election of members of the board of supervisors and school board and shall so continue unless and until the same shall be changed as provided by law.

Sec. 22-32. Election district boundaries; polling places.

(a) Districts enumerated. The following are the election districts, voting precincts, and polling places in the county for election of members of the board of supervisors and school board:

- (1) East Abingdon and West Abingdon precincts in election district A-20012011;*
- (2) Clinchburg, Greendale, ~~and~~ Hayter's Gap, and Woodland Hills precincts in election district B-20012011;*
- (3) Watauga and South Abingdon precincts in election district C-20012011;*
- (4) Glade Spring and Meadowview precincts in election district D-20012011;*
- (5) Rhea Valley, Damascus and Green Cove precincts in election district E-20012011;*

- (6) *Burson Place, Mendota and Valley Institute precincts in election district F-~~2001~~2011; and*
- (7) *High Point, John Battle and Wallace precincts in election district G-~~2001~~2011.*

The boundary lines and names thereof respectively as constituted in this section are established and declared to be the precincts in the election districts of the county and shall so continue unless and until the same shall be changed as provided by law.

(b) Election district A-~~2001~~2011, precincts and polling places.

(1) District boundaries. Election district A-~~2001~~2011 is described as follows:

Beginning at a point, the intersection of Route 611 (Spring Creek Road) and U.S. Highway 11 (Lee Hwy); thence north with Route 611 to the intersection of Route 611 and Route 883 (Repass Road); thence east with Route 883 approximately 1650 feet to the intersection of Route 883 and Milton Drive; thence north with Milton Drive to the intersection of Milton Drive and Route 645 (Wyndale Road); thence east with Route 645 to its intersection with the Town of Abingdon corporation line~~thence west with Route 645 approximately 40 feet to an intersection of Route 645 and a driveway; thence north with the driveway to the point where it is crossed by the American Electric Power Company transmission line; thence northeast with the American Electric Power Company transmission line to a point where it crosses Route 19/58 (Porterfield Hwy); thence south with Route 19/58 to a point where Route 19/58 crosses the Town of Abingdon Corporation Line; thence following the Town of Abingdon corporation line east to a point where it crosses Route 692 (Whites Mill Road); thence north with Route 692 to its intersection with Route 695 (Chip Ridge Rd); thence with Route 695 to a point where it is crossed by American Electric Power Company transmission line; thence with the American Electric Power Company transmission line northeasterly 2.6 miles to the intersection of American Electric Power Company transmission line with Route 696 (Hillandale Road); thence east with Route 696 to where it intersects Route 693 (Litchfield Road); thence south on Route 693 to the intersection of Route 693 and Route 779 (Hillandale Road); thence east on Route 779 to the intersection of Route 779 and Route 694 (Northridge Road); thence south with Route 694 approximately 1.62 miles to the intersection of Route 694 and Route 609 (Hillman Hwy) at Wimmer's Crossing; thence southwesterly with Route 609 (Hillman Hwy) 0.1 mile to the intersection of Route 609 and Route 694 (Stonybrook Road); thence southward with Route 694 to the intersection of Route 694 and U.S. Highway 11 (Lee Hwy); thence west with U.S. Highway 11 to the intersection of U.S. Highway 11 and Route 677 (Watauga Road); thence southwest with Route 677 to the intersection of Route 677 and Route 58 (Jeb Stuart Hwy); thence north with Route 58 to the intersection of Route 58 and U.S. Highway 11 (Lee Hwy); thence west with U.S. Highway 11 and East Main Street to its intersection with N&W train tracks at the East Main St Bridge; ~~2.5 miles to the intersection of East Main Street and South Court Street; thence south with Court Street to the intersection of Court Street and Blacks Fort; thence west with Blacks Fort to~~~~

~~the intersection of Blacks Fort and Green Springs Road; thence southwest with Green Springs Road to the intersection of Green Springs Road and the N&W train tracks; thence west with the N&W train tracks to Cummings Street; thence south on Cummings Street to the intersection of Cummings Street and Bradley Street; thence west with Bradley Street to the intersection of Grove Terrace and Oakland Street; thence south with Oakland Street to the intersection of Oakland Street and Jamison Street; thence west with Jamison Street to the intersection of Jamison Street and Fuller Street; thence north with Fuller Street to the intersection of Fuller Street and Bradley Street; thence west on Bradley Street to the intersection of Bradley Street and Woolwine Street; thence north on Woolwine Street to the intersection of Woolwine Street and Sutton Street; thence west on Sutton Street to the intersection of Sutton Street and Butt Street; thence north on Butt Street to the intersection of Butt Street and Colonial Road; thence west on Colonial Road to the intersection of Colonial Road and U.S. Highway 11 (West Main Street); thence west on U.S. Highway 11 (West Main Street) to the intersection of U.S. Highway 11 and Route 140; thence south on Route 140 until Route 140 becomes Route 647 (Old Jonesborough Road); thence southwest on Route 647 to the intersection of Route 647 and Route 611 (Spring Creek Road); thence north with 611 to the point of beginning.~~

(2) *Precincts and polling places.*

a. *East Abingdon precinct is described as follows:*

Beginning at a point where East Main Street intersects with North Court Street; thence north with North Court Street where it ends at the intersection with Clark Street; thence go north to the Town of Abingdon corporation line; thence following the Town of Abingdon corporation line east to a point where it crosses Route 692 (Whites Mill Road); thence north with Route 692 to its intersection with Route 695 (Chip Ridge Road); thence with Route 695 to a point where it is crossed by American Electric Power Company transmission line; thence with the American Electric Power Company transmission line northeastwardly 2.6 miles to the intersection of American Electric Power Company transmission line with Route 696 (Hillandale Road); thence east with Route 696 to where it intersects Route 693 (Litchfield Road); thence south on Route 693 to the intersection of Route 693 and Route 779 (Hillandale Road); thence east on Route 779 to the intersection of Route 779 and Route 694 (Northridge Road); thence south with Route 694 approximately 1.62 miles to the intersection of Route 694 and Route 609 (Hillman Hwy) at Wimmer's Crossing; thence southwesterly with Route 609 (Hillman Hwy) 0.1 mile to the intersection of Route 609 and Route 694 (Stonybrook Road); thence southward with Route 694 to the intersection of Route 694 and U.S. Highway 11 (Lee Hwy); thence west with U.S. Highway 11 to the intersection of U.S. Highway 11 and Route 677 (Watauga Road); thence southwest with Route 677 to the intersection of Route 677 and Route 58 (Jeb Stuart Hwy); thence north with Route 58 to the intersection of Route 58 and U.S. Highway 11 (Lee Hwy); thence west with U.S. Highway 11 and East Main Street to its intersection with

N & W train tracks at the East Main Street Bridge; 2.5 miles to the intersection of East Main Street and Court Street thence west along the N & W train tracks to its intersection with Green Spring Road; thence north along Green Spring Road to its intersection with Blacks Fort Lane; thence along Blacks Fort Lane to its intersection with South Court Street; thence north on South Court Street to also being the beginning point.

The polling place for East Abingdon precinct is Abingdon High School.

b. West Abingdon precinct is described as follows:

Beginning at a point, the intersection of Route 611 (Spring Creek Road) and U.S. Highway 11 (Lee Hwy); thence north with Route 611 to the intersection of Route 611 and Route 883 (Repass Road); thence east with Route 883 approximately 1650 feet to the intersection of Route 883 and Milton Drive; thence north with Milton Drive to the intersection of Milton Drive and Route 645 (Wyndale Road); thence east with Route 645 to its intersection with the Abingdon corporation line; ~~thence west with Route 645 approximately 40 feet to an intersection of Route 645 and a driveway; thence north with the driveway to the point where it is crossed by the American Electric Power Company transmission line; thence northeast with the American Electric Power Company transmission line to a point where it crosses Route 19/58 (Porterfield Hwy); thence south with Route 19/58 to a point where Route 19/58 crosses the Town of Abingdon Corporation Line;~~ thence following the Town of Abingdon corporation line east to a point where it is due north of the intersection of North Court Street and Clark Street; thence south with North Court Street to the intersection of Court Street and East Main Street; thence south with South Court Street to the intersection of South Court Street and Blacks Fort; thence west with Blacks Fort to the intersection of Blacks Fort and Green Springs Road; thence southwest with Green Springs Road to the intersection of Green Springs Road and the N&W train tracks; thence west with the N&W train tracks to Cummings Street; thence south on Cummings Street to the intersection of Cummings Street and Bradley Street~~Grove Terrace~~; thence west with Bradley Street~~Grove Terrace~~ to the intersection of Grove Terrace~~Bradley Street and and Oakland Street~~; ~~thence south with Oakland Street to the intersection of Oakland Street and Jamison Street; thence west with Jamison Street to the intersection of Jamison Street and Fuller Street; thence north with Fuller Street to the intersection of Fuller Street and Bradley Street; thence west on Bradley Street to the intersection of Bradley Street and Woolwine Street; thence north on Woolwine Street to the intersection of Woolwine Street and Sutton Street; thence west on Sutton Street to the intersection of Sutton Street and Butt Street; thence north on Butt Street to the intersection of Butt Street and Colonial Road; thence west on Colonial Road to the intersection of Colonial Road and U.S. Highway 11 (West Main Street); thence west on U.S. Highway 11 (West Main Street) to the intersection of U.S. Highway 11 and Route 140; thence south on Route 140 until Route 140 becomes Route 647 (Old Jonesborough Road); thence southwest on Route 647 to the intersection of~~

Route 647 and Route 611 (Spring Creek Road); thence north with 611 to the point of beginning.

The polling place for West Abingdon precinct is Abingdon Elementary School.

(c) Election district B-~~2001~~2011, precincts and polling places.

(1) District boundaries. Election district B-~~2001~~2011 is described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the Washington-Russell County line, the northeast corner of the Tyler magisterial district; thence leaving the Washington-Russell County line and go south with the line approximately 1.2 miles to a point in the centerline of the north fork of the Holston River passing between the properties of M. P. Pendleton and J. Ross Fleenor heirs; thence with the centerline of the north fork of the Holston River, upstream, 1.5 miles to the intersection of Large Creek and the Holston River; thence with Large Creek, upstream, to the intersection of Large Creek and Route 626 (Large Hollow Road); thence southeast with Route 626 approximately 3 miles to the intersection of Route 626 and Route 700 (Rich Valley Road); thence west with Route 700 approximately 0.8 mile to the intersection of Route 700 and Route 614 (Mountain Spring Road); thence south with Route 614 approximately 2.0 miles to the intersection of Route 614 and Route 633 (Black Hollow Road); thence east with Route 633 approximately ~~0.92~~2.2 miles to the intersection of Route 633 and Route ~~614 (Childress Hollow Road)~~611 (Providence Road); thence south with Route ~~614~~611 approximately ~~1.81~~1.0 miles to the intersection of Route ~~614 and Route 662 (Spring Valley Road)~~a stream called Beaver Creek; thence following Beaver Creek to the southwest to its intersection with ~~thence east with Route 662 to the intersection of Route 662 and Route 804 (Rust Hollow Rd)~~; thence east with Route 804 to the intersection of Route 804 with the American Electric Power Company power transmission line; thence the American Electric Power Company power transmission line northeast approximately 1.2 miles to its intersection with an unnamed drive north of the intersection of Route 645 and Milton Dr; thence following the unnamed drive south to its intersection with Route 645 (Wyndale Road); thence east along Route 645 to its intersection with the Town of Abingdon corporation line; ~~4 miles to a point where the line intersects with Route 19/58 (Porterfield Hwy); thence south with Route 19/58 to a point where Route 19/58 crosses the Town of Abingdon Corporation Line;~~ thence following the Town of Abingdon corporation line east to a point where it crosses Route 692 (Whites Mill Road); thence north with Route 692 to its intersection with Route 695 (Chip Ridge Road); thence along Chip Ridge Road to a point where it is crossed by the American Electric Power Company power transmission line; thence the American Electric Power Company power transmission line northeastwardly 2.6 miles to the intersection the American Electric Power Company power transmission line with Route 696 (Hillandale Road); thence east with Route 696 to the intersection of Route 696 and Route 693 (Litchfield Road); thence south on Route 693 to the intersection of Route 693 and Route 779 (Hillandale Road); thence east on Route 779 to the intersection of Route 779 and Route

694 (Northridge Road); thence south with Route 694 to the top of Walker Mountain at the intersection of Route 694 and Route 740 (Old Saltworks Road); thence with the ~~top of Walker Mountain~~ northeastwardly 12 miles to a point on the Smyth-Washington County lineridgeline that follows the drainage divide of Walker Mountain near the intersection of Route 740 and Balsam Drive northeast along the divide to go between the terminus of Route 686 (Moore Creek Road) and Route 737 (College Drive) so that the roads of Balsam Drive, College Drive, Tobias Drive, and Tree Top Drive are fully inside this Election District northeasterly 12 miles to a point on the Smyth-Washington County line; thence with the Smyth-Washington County line go northwest approximately 8.6 miles to a point on the Russell County line, that point being the northeast corner of Washington County; thence with the Russell-Washington County line go southwest approximately 23 miles to the point of beginning.

(2) *Precincts and polling places.*

a. *Clinchburg precinct is described as follows:*

Beginning with the middle of the north fork of the Holston River at the point where the Holston River crosses the Washington-Smyth County line; thence downstream with the north fork of the Holston River to Fullen Branch which follows into the Holston River from the south at a point approximately 1.5 miles upstream from the point where Route 80 (Hayters Gap Road) crosses the north fork of the Holston River; thence south, upstream with Fullen Branch in a southeasterly direction to the intersection of Fullen Branch and Route 703 (Chestnut Ridge Road); thence southwest with Route 703 to the intersection of Route 703 and Route 80 (Lindell Road); thence north with Route 80 approximately 0.8 miles to the intersection of Route 80 and Route 703 (Shortsville Road); thence southwest with Route 703 to the intersection of Route 703 and Route 741 (Maiden Creek Road); thence continuing south with Route 703 (Maiden Creek Road) to the intersection of Route 703 and Route 740 (Old Saltworks Road); thence southwest with Route 740 approximately 0.5 mile to the top of Walker Mountain and the B-91 district line; thence with the ~~top of Walker Mountain~~ northeastwardly 12 miles to a point on the Smyth-Washington County lineridgeline that follows the drainage divide of Walker Mountain near the intersection of Route 740 and Balsam Drive northeast along the divide to go between the terminus of Route 686 (Moore Creek Road) and Route 737 (College Drive) so that the roads of Balsam Drive, College Drive, Tobias Drive, and Tree Top Drive are fully outside this Election District, northeasterly 12 miles to a point on the Smyth-Washington County line; thence with the Smyth-Washington County line go northwest approximately 4.2 miles to beginning point in middle of the north fork of the Holston River.

The polling place for Clinchburg precinct is Clinchburg Community Center.

b. *Greendale precinct is described as follows:*

Beginning at a point on the Russell-Washington County line, which point is located immediately north of the head of Brumley Creek; thence south to the head of Brumley Creek; thence downstream on Brumley Creek to the point where Brumley Creek crosses Route 689 (Brumley Gap Road); thence leaving Brumley Creek and in a southerly direction crossing Little Mountain at its highest point in this area, crossing Route 611 (North Fork River Road) to a point in the middle of the north fork of the Holston River 1 mile east of the bridge crossing Route 692 (Toole Creek Road); thence upstream along the middle of the north fork of the Holston River to the point where Findley Creek flows into the Holston River; thence leaving the Holston River and following Findley Creek upstream in a southerly direction to Route 700 (Rich Valley Road) and Route 741 (Maiden Creek Road); thence southeast with Route 741 to the intersection of Route 741 and Route 703 (Shortsville Road); thence southwest with Route 703 (Maiden Creek Road) to the intersection of Route 703 and Route 740 (Old Saltworks Road); thence southwest with Route 740 approximately 0.5 mile to the top of the Walker Mountain, this being the B-91/A-91 voting district line; thence northwest with Route 694 (Northridge Road) to the intersection of Route 694 and Route 779 (Hillandale Road); thence west with Route 779 to the intersection of Route 779 and Route 693 (Litchfield Road); thence west with Route 696 (Hillandale Road) to the intersection of Route 696 and the American Electric Power Company transmission line; thence southwest with the American Electric Power Company transmission line 2.615 miles to where it intersects with Route 695 (Chip Ridge Road); thence along Route 695 to the southwest to its intersection with Route 692 (Whites Mill Road); thence south with Route 692 to where it intersects with the Town of Abingdon corporation line; thence following the Town of Abingdon corporation line west 1.3 miles to a point where it intersects a ridge line from the north; thence following this ridge and continuing northward down a valley crossing White Branch then back up a mountain to a point on a ridge top between Route 892 (Condor Lane) and Derby Drive; thence following the drainage divide of said mountain in a southwesterly direction to a point where it intersects Route 611 (Providence Road) and Beaver Creek; thence north along Route 611 to its intersection with Route 633 (Black Hollow Road); thence west along Route 633 to its intersection with ~~to where it intersects with Route 19/58 (Porterfield Hwy); thence north with Route 19/58 to where it intersects with the American Electric Power Company transmission line; thence southwest with the American Electric Power Company transmission line 3 miles to where it intersects with Route 804 (Rust Hollow Road); thence west with Route 804 to the intersection of Route 804 and Route 662 (Spring Valley Road); thence southwest with Route 662 to the intersection of Route 662 and Route 614 (Childress Hollow Road); thence north with Route 614 to the intersection of Route 614 and Route 633 (Black Hollow Road); thence southwest with Route 633 to the intersection of Route 633 and Route 614 (Mountain Spring Road); thence north with Route 614 to the intersection of Route 614 and Route 700 (Rich Valley Road); thence east with Route 700 to the intersection of Route 700 and Route 626 (Large Hollow Road); thence north with Route 626 to the intersection of Route 626 and Large~~

Creek; thence north, downstream with Large Creek to where Large Creek intersects with the north fork of the Holston River; thence downstream with the north fork Holston River approximately 1.5 miles to a point, thence 1.2 miles north to a point on the Washington-Russell County line passing between the properties of M. P. Pendleton and J. Ross Fleenor heirs; thence following the Washington-Russell County line east to the point of beginning.

The polling place for Greendale precinct is Greendale Elementary School.

c. Hayter's Gap precinct is described as follows:

Beginning with the north fork of the Holston River at a point where the Holston River crosses the Smyth-Washington County line; thence northwest with the Smyth-Washington County line Russell-Washington County line; thence with the Russell-Washington County line in a southwesterly direction to a point immediately north of the head of Brumley Creek; thence south to the head of Brumley Creek; thence downstream on Brumley Creek to the point where Brumley Creek crosses Route 689 (Brumley Gap Road); thence leaving Brumley Creek and in a southerly direction crossing Little Mountain at its highest point in this area, crossing Route 611 (North Fork River Road) to a point in the middle of the north fork of the Holston River 1 mile east of the bridge crossing Route 692 (Toole Creek Road); thence upstream along the middle of the north fork of the Holston River to the point where Findley Creek flows into the Holston River; thence leaving the Holston River and following Findley Creek upstream in a southerly direction to Route 700 (Rich Valley Road) and Route 741 (Maiden Creek Road); thence southeast with Route 741 to the intersection of Route 741 and Route 703 (Shortsville Road); thence northeast with Route 703 to the intersection of Route 703 and Route 80 (Lindell Road); thence south with Route 80 0.8 miles to the intersection of Route 80 and Route 703 (Chestnut Ridge Road); thence northeast with Route 703 approximately 0.8 miles to the intersection of Route 703 and Fullen Branch; thence northerly and downstream with Fullen Branch to the intersection of Fullen Branch with the north fork of the Holston River; thence upstream, along the north fork of the Holston River to the Smyth-Washington County line, this point being the point of beginning.

The polling place for Hayter's Gap precinct is Hayter's Gap Community Center.

c. Woodland Hills precinct is described as follows:

Beginning with a point at the intersection of Route 645 (Wyndale Road) and Milton Drive; thence east along Route 645 to its intersection with the Abingdon corporation line; thence following the Abingdon corporation line east to its intersection with Route 19 & 58 (Porterfield Hwy); thence continuing along the Abingdon corporation line for 0.75 miles to a point where it intersects a ridge line from the north; thence following this ridge and continuing northward down a valley crossing White Branch then back up a mountain to a

point on a ridge top between Route 892 (Condor Lane) and Derby Drive; thence following the drainage divide of said mountain in a southwesterly direction to a point where it intersects Route 611 (Providence Road) and Beaver Creek; thence north along Route 611 to its intersection with Route 633 (Black Hollow Road); thence west along Route 633 to its intersection with Route 611 (Providence Road) and Beaver Creek; thence following Beaver Creek to the southwest to its intersection with Route 804 (Rust Hollow Rd); thence east with Route 804 to the intersection of Route 804 with the American Electric Power Company power transmission line; thence the American Electric Power Company power transmission line northeast approximately 1.2 miles to its intersection with an unnamed drive north of the intersection of Route 645 and Milton Drive; thence following the unnamed drive south to its intersection with Route 645 (Wyndale Road), this being the point of beginning.

The polling place for Woodland Hills precinct is Abingdon Elementary School.

(d) Election district C-~~2001~~2011, precincts and polling places.

(1) District boundaries. Election district C-~~2001~~2011 is described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the Virginia-Tennessee state line near the offset at the intersection of Virginia-Tennessee state line with Camp Hollow Branch/Mays Branch; thence northerly approximately 2 miles with Camp Hollow Branch/Mays Branch to its intersection with South Holston reservoir; thence northeasterly with South Holston reservoir approximately 2.1 miles to the intersection of the South Holston reservoir, the middle fork of the Holston River, and the south fork of the Holston River; thence 2.26 miles north or upstream with the middle fork of the Holston River to where a creek empties into the river, thence upstream with said creek to where it crosses under the Virginia Creeper Trail being approximately 1 mile from the intersection of the Virginia Creeper Trail and Route 677; thence northwest with the Virginia Creeper Trail to intersection of the Virginia Creeper Trail and the American Electric Power Company transmission line north of Route 677 (Watauga Road); thence east along the American Electric Power Company transmission line to its intersection with Fifteenmile Creek; thence following Fifteenmile Creek northeast to its intersection with Route 58 (Jeb Stuart Hwy); thence east with Route 677 to the intersection of Route 677 and Route 58 (Jeb Stuart Hwy); thence north with Route 58 to the intersection of Route 58 and U.S. Highway 11 (Lee Hwy); thence west with U.S. Highway 11 and East Main Street to its intersection with N & W train tracks at the East Main Street Bridge; ~~2.5 miles to the intersection of East Main Street and South Court Street; thence south with Court Street to the intersection of Court Street and Blacks Fort; thence west with Blacks Fort to the intersection of Blacks Fort and Green Springs Road; thence southwest with Green Springs Road to the intersection of Green Springs Road and the N&W train tracks;~~ thence west with the N&W train tracks to Cummings Street; thence south on Cummings Street to the intersection of Cummings Street and ~~Grove Terrace~~Bradley Street; thence west with ~~Grove Terrace~~Bradley Street to the intersection of ~~Grove Terrace and Oakland Street~~Bradley Street and ; thence south with ~~Oakland Street to the intersection of Oakland Street and Jamison Street;~~ thence west with ~~Jamison Street to the intersection of Jamison Street and Fuller Street;~~ thence north with ~~Fuller Street to the intersection of Fuller Street and Bradley Street;~~ thence west on

~~Bradley Street to the intersection of Bradley Street and Woolwine Street; thence north on Woolwine Street to the intersection of Woolwine Street and Sutton Street; thence west on Sutton Street to the intersection of Sutton Street and Butt Street; thence north on Butt Street to the intersection of Butt Street and Colonial Road; thence west on Colonial Road to the intersection of Colonial Road and U.S. Highway 11 (West Main Street); thence west on U.S. Highway 11 (West Main Street) to the intersection of U.S. Highway 11 and Route 140; thence south on Route 140 until Route 140 becomes Route 647 (Old Jonesborough Road); thence southwest on Route 647 to the intersection of Route 647 and Route 611 (Spring Creek Road); thence continuing south on Route 647 approximately 1400 feet to a point where Route 647 intersects a creek known as Spring Creek; thence south with Spring Creek to where it intersects with Route 663 (Golden View Drive); thence south with Route 663 approximately 0.75 miles to the intersection of Route 663 and a small stream or drainage course in the sharp curve of Route 663, thence following this small stream east for 0.65 miles to a point where it intersects the American Electric Power Company power transmission line being 0.55 miles southwest of Route 671; thence following the American Electric Power Company power transmission line said 0.55 miles northeast to the intersection with Route 671 (Neal Road); thence following Route 671 to the intersection of Route 671 and Route 665 (Cleveland Road); thence north-south with Route 665 to the intersection of Route 665 and Route 663 (Shell Road); thence southwest with Route 663 to the intersection of Route 663 and Route 75 (Green Spring Road); thence north with Route 75 to the intersection of Route 75 and Route 669 (Bowman Road); thence south with Route 669 to the intersection of Route 669 and Route 664 (Lake Road); thence east with Route 664 approximately 960 feet to the intersection of Route 664 and Sportsman Drive; thence south to the termination of Sportsman Drive at or close to the shoreline of the South Holston reservoir; thence southwest with the shoreline of the South Holston reservoir to the Tennessee-Virginia line; thence east with the Tennessee line 4.5 miles to an offset in the Tennessee-Virginia line; thence northerly with the Tennessee line 1.6 miles east with the Tennessee line 0.1 mile to the Camp Hollow Branch/Mays Branch point of beginning.~~

(2) *Precincts and polling places.*

a. *The Watauga precinct is described as follows:*

Beginning at a point where the crest of the Great Knob crosses Route 663 (Golden View Drive) 140 feet south and east from the intersection of Route 663 and Spring Creek; thence northeast with the Great Knob range to the intersection of Route 670 (Spoon Gap Road); thence in a northeast direction on Route 670 (which becomes Vances Mill Road) to the intersection of Route 670 and Route 75 (Green Spring Road); thence in a northerly direction on Route 75 to the intersection of Route 75 and I-81; thence northeast with I-81 to the point of intersection with the Virginia Creeper Trail; thence southeast with the Virginia Creeper Trail to the top of Great Knob range; thence east with the top of Great Knob range to the intersection of Route 58 (Jeb Stuart Hwy); thence southeast with Route 58 to the intersection of Route 58 and Fifteenmile Creek which is 350 feet north of the intersection of Route 58 and Route 677 (Watauga Road); thence following Fifteenmile Creek southwest to its intersection with the American Electric Power Company power transmission

line; thence following the American Electric Power Company power transmission line southwest to its intersection with the Virginia Creeper Trail; ~~thence southwest with Route 677 to the intersection of Route 677 and the Virginia Creeper Trail;~~ thence south with the Virginia Creeper Trail approximately ~~1 mile~~ 1.6 miles to where the Trail is crossed by a creek; thence south or downstream with the creek to where it empties into the middle fork of the Holston River; thence south or downstream with the middle fork of the Holston River to where it merges with the south fork of the Holston River and becomes the South Holston reservoir; thence southwest with South Holston reservoir to its intersection with Camp Hollow Branch/Mays Branch; thence south or upstream with the Camp Hollow Branch/Mays Branch to the Tennessee line; thence southwest and west with the Tennessee line approximately 6.2 miles to its intersection with the west shoreline of the South Holston reservoir; thence with the South Holston reservoir shoreline upstream to a point where it intersects with Sportsman Drive at the Sportsman Marina; thence north with Sportsman Drive to the intersection of Sportsman Drive and Route 664 (Lake Road); thence west with Route 664 to the intersection of Route 664 and Route 669 (Bowman Road); thence north with Route 669 to the intersection of Route 669 and Route 75 (Green Spring Road); thence southwest with Route 75 to the intersection of Route 75 and Route 663 (Shell Road); thence with Route 663 to the intersection of Route 663 and Route 665 (Cleveland Road); thence northeast with Route 665 to the intersection of Route 665 and Route 661 (Neal Road); thence with Route 671 to its intersection with the American Electric Power Company power transmission line; thence southwest along the American Electric Power Company power transmission line for 0.55 miles to its intersection with a small stream or drainage course; thence west along said drainage course down to a point where it intersects Route 663 (Golden View Drive); ~~thence southwest with Route 665 to the intersection of Route 665 and Route 663 (Golden View Drive);~~ thence north with Route 663 ~~3 miles~~ 0.75 mile to the beginning point.

The polling place for Watauga precinct is on Route 677 or Watauga Road at Watauga Elementary School.

b. South Abingdon precinct is described as follows:

Beginning at a point where the crest of the Great Knob crosses Route 663 (Golden View Drive) 140 feet south and east from the intersection of Route 663 and Spring Creek; thence northeast with the Great Knob range to the intersection of Route 670 (Spoon Gap Road); thence in a northeast direction on Route 670 (which becomes Vances Mill Road) to the intersection of Route 670 and Route 75 (Green Spring Road); thence in a northerly direction on Route 75 to the intersection of Route 75 and I-81; thence northeast with I-81 to the point of intersection with the Virginia Creeper Trail; thence southeast with the Virginia Creeper Trail to the top of Great Knob range; thence east with the top of Great Knob range to the intersection of Route 58 (Jeb Stuart Hwy); thence north with Route 58 to the intersection of Route 58 and U.S. Highway 11 (Lee Hwy); thence west with U.S. Highway 11 and East Main Street to its

~~intersection with N&W train tracks at the East Main Street Bridge 2.5 miles to the intersection of East Main Street and South Court Street; thence south with Court Street to the intersection of Court Street and Blacks Fort; thence west with Blacks Fort to the intersection of Blacks Fort and Green Springs Road; thence southwest with Green Springs Road to the intersection of Green Springs Road and the N&W train tracks; thence west with the N&W train tracks to Cummings Street; thence south on Cummings Street to the intersection of Cummings Street and Grove Terrace Bradley Street; thence west with Grove Terrace Bradley Street to the intersection of Grove Terrace Bradley Street and Oakland Street Woolwine Place; thence south with Oakland Street to the intersection of Oakland Street and Jamison Street; thence west with Jamison Street to the intersection of Jamison Street and Fuller Street; thence north with Fuller Street to the intersection of Fuller Street and Bradley Street; thence west on Bradley Street to the intersection of Bradley Street and Woolwine Street; thence north on Woolwine Street to the intersection of Woolwine Street and Sutton Street; thence west on Sutton Street to the intersection of Sutton Street and Butt Street; thence north on Butt Street to the intersection of Butt Street and Colonial Road; thence west on Colonial Road to the intersection of Colonial Road and U.S. Highway 11 (West Main Street); thence west on U.S. Highway 11 (West Main Street) to the intersection of U.S. Highway 11 and Route 140; thence south on Route 140 until Route 140 becomes Route 647 (Old Jonesborough Road); thence southwest on Route 647 to the intersection of Route 647 and Route 611 (Spring Creek Road); thence continuing south on Route 647 approximately 1400 feet to a point where Route 647 intersects a creek known as Spring Creek; thence south with Spring Creek to where it intersects with Route 663 (Golden View Drive); 140 feet south and east with Route 663 (Golden View Drive) to the point of beginning.~~

The polling place for the South Abingdon precinct is the Southwest Virginia Higher Education Center off of Jonesboro Road and VHCC Drive, Abingdon, Virginia.

(e) *Election district D-~~2001~~2011, precincts and polling places.*

(1) *District boundaries. Election district D-~~2001~~2011 is described as follows:*

Beginning at a point on top of Walker Mountain on Route 740 (Old Saltworks Road) at or near the intersection of Route 740 and Route 694 (Northridge Road); thence with the Walker Mountain ridgeline that follows the drainage divide of Walker Mountain near the intersection of Route 740 and Balsam Drive northeast along the divide to go between the terminus of Route 686 (Moore Creek Road) and Route 737 (College Drive) so that the roads of Balsam Drive, College Drive, Tobias Drive, and Tree Top Drive are fully inside this Election District, northeasterly 12 miles to a point on the Smyth-Washington County line ~~thence with the top of Walker Mountain northeasterly 12 miles to a point on the Smyth-Washington County line~~; thence with the Smyth-Washington County line southeasterly 4.1 miles crossing U.S. Highway No. 11 and I-81 to a point in the centerline of the middle fork of the Holston

River; thence leaving the Smyth-Washington County line and with the middle fork of the Holston River southwesterly approximately 15.8 miles to an intersection with Greenway Creek, then north on Greenway Creek to intersection with Route 706 (Rivermont Drive); thence west on Route 706 for 1.4 miles to the intersection with Route 705 (Honey Locust Road); ~~11.5 miles to the intersection with Cedar Creek; thence north 200 feet with Cedar Creek to a point where Cedar Creek is crossed by Route 706 (Rivermont Drive); thence west with Route 706 approximately 3.3 miles to the intersection of Route 706 and Route 705 (Honey Locust Road);~~ thence north with Route 705 to the intersection of Route 705 and Route 677 (Watauga Road); thence north with Route 677 to the intersection of Route 677 and U.S. Highway 11 (Lee Hwy); thence with U.S. Highway 11 approximately 1.4 miles to the intersection of U.S. Highway 11 and Route 694 (Stonybrook Road); thence with Route 694 northwesterly 1.2 miles to the intersection of Route 694 and Route 609 (Hillman Hwy); thence northeast with Route 609 approximately 0.1 mile to the intersection of Route 609 and Route 694 (Northridge Road) at Wimmer's Crossing; thence with Route 694 northwesterly 1.62 miles to the point of beginning.

(2) *Precincts and polling places.*

a. *Glade Spring precinct is described as follows:*

Beginning at a point on top of Walker Mountain on the Washington-Smyth County line; thence with the Smyth-Washington County line southeasterly 4.1 miles crossing U.S. Highway No. 11 and I-81 to a point in the centerline of the middle fork of the Holston River; thence leaving the Smyth-Washington County line and with the middle fork of the Holston River southwesterly approximately ~~9 miles~~ 9.2 miles to the intersection with Bryers Creek; thence north and upstream with Bryers Creek approximately 0.5 miles to the intersection of Bryers Creek and Halls Creek near the intersection of Route 736 (Indian Run Road) and Route 735 (Ramblewood Road); thence north and upstream with Halls Creek to the intersection of Halls Creek and Richardson Branch south of Hillman Hwy; thence north and upstream with Richardson Branch to a point immediately north of the head of Richardson Branch on top of Walkers Mountain; thence northeast with the top of Walkers Mountain to the point of beginning on the Washington-Smyth County line.

The polling place for Glade Spring precinct is Glade Spring Middle School.

b. *Meadowview precinct is described as follows:*

Beginning at a point on top of Walker Mountain on Route 740 (Old Saltworks Road) at or near the intersection of Route 740 and Route 694 (Northridge Road); thence northeast with the top of Walker Mountain approximately 6.8 miles to a point immediately north of the head of Richardson Branch thence with the Walker Mountain ridgeline that follows the drainage divide of Walker Mountain near the intersection of Route 740 and Balsam Drive northeast

along the divide to go between the terminus of Route 686 (Moore Creek Road) and Route 737 (College Drive) so that the roads of Balsam Drive, College Drive, Tobias Drive, and Tree Top Drive are fully inside the Meadowview Precinct, and continuing along the ridgeline to a point immediately north of the head of Richardson Branch on top of Walkers Mountain; thence south and downstream with Richardson Branch to the intersection of Richardson Branch and Halls Creek south of Hillman Hwy; thence south and downstream with Halls Creek to the intersection of Halls Creek and Bryers Creek near the intersection of Route 736 (Indian Run Road) and Route 735 (Ramblewood Road); thence south and downstream with Bryers Creek to the intersection of Bryers Creek and the middle fork of the Holston River; thence following the center of the middle fork of the Holston River 6.6 miles to an intersection with Greenway Creek, then north on Greenway Creek to intersection with Route 706 (Rivermont Drive); thence west on Route 706 for 1.4 miles to its intersection with 4.8 miles to the intersection with Cedar Creek; thence north 200 feet with Cedar Creek to a point where Cedar Creek is crossed by Route 706 (Rivermont Drive); thence west with Route 706 approximately 3.3 miles to the intersection of Route 706 and Route 705 (Honey Locust Road); thence north with Route 705 to the intersection of Route 705 and Route 677 (Watauga Road); thence north with Route 677 to the intersection of Route 677 and U.S. Highway 11 (Lee Hwy); thence with U.S. Highway 11 approximately 1.4 miles to the intersection of U.S. Highway 11 and Route 694 (Stonybrook Road); thence with Route 694 northwesterly 1.2 miles to the intersection of Route 694 and Route 609 (Hillman Hwy); thence northeast with Route 609 approximately 0.1 mile to the intersection of Route 609 and Route 694 (Northridge Road) at Wimmer's Crossing; thence with Route 694 northwesterly 1.62 miles to the point of beginning.

The polling place for Meadowview precinct is Meadowview Elementary School.

(f) Election district E-~~2001~~2011, precincts and polling places.

(1) District boundaries. Election district E-~~2001~~2011 is described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the Virginia-Tennessee state line near the offset at the intersection of the Virginia-Tennessee state line with Camp Hollow Branch/Mays Branch; thence go north approximately 2 miles with Camp Hollow Branch/Mays Branch to its intersection with South Holston reservoir; thence northeasterly with South Holston reservoir approximately 2.1 miles to the intersection of the South Holston reservoir, the middle fork of the Holston River, and the south fork of the Holston River; thence 2.26 miles north or upstream with the middle fork of the Holston River to where a creek empties into the river, thence upstream with said creek to where it crosses under the Virginia Creeper Trail being approximately 1-mile 1.6 miles from the intersection of the Virginia Creeper Trail and Route 677; thence northwest with the Virginia Creeper Trail to intersection of the Virginia Creeper Trail and the American Electric Power Company power transmission line; thence following the American Electric Power Company power transmission line northeast to its intersection with Fifteemile Creek; thence following Fifteemile Creek northeast to its intersection

with Route 58 (Jeb Stuart Hwy); thence southeast along Route 58 for 300 feet to its intersection with Route 677 (Watauga Road); ~~Route 677 (Watauga Road);~~ thence east with Route 677 approximately 3.7 miles to the intersection of Route 677 and Route 705 (Honey Locust Road); thence south with Route 705 to the intersection of Route 705 and Route 706 (Rivermont Drive); thence east with Route 706 approximately ~~3.7 miles~~ 1.4 miles to an intersection with Greenway Creek, then south on Greenway Creek to a point in the centerline of the middle fork of the Holston River; ~~to the point where Route 706 cross Cedar Creek which is approximately 100 feet from the intersection of Route 706 and Route 803 (Cedar Creek Road);~~ thence south with Cedar Creek 200 feet to a point in the center of the middle fork of the Holston River; thence with the centerline of the middle fork of the Holston River northeasterly approximately ~~11.5 miles~~ 15.8 miles to the intersection of the Holston River and the Washington-Smyth County line, being approximately 0.3 mile south of I-81; thence with the Washington-Smyth County line southeasterly 12 miles to the intersection of Washington-Smyth County line with the Grayson County line; thence leaving the Smyth County line and with the Washington-Grayson County line go south and west approximately 3 miles to the intersection of the Washington-Grayson County line and the Tennessee state line; thence with the Virginia-Tennessee state line go west approximately 15 miles to the point of beginning.

(2) *Precincts and polling places.*

a. *Rhea Valley precinct is described as follows:*

Beginning at the intersection middle fork of the Holston River and the Washington-Smyth County line, being approximately 0.3 mile south of I-81; thence with the Washington-Smyth County line southeasterly approximately 5.8 miles to the top of Iron Mountain; thence with the top of Iron Mountain southwesterly to the head of Buzzard Den Branch; thence downstream to a point where Buzzard Den Branch empties into the south fork of the Holston River; thence downstream with the south fork of the Holston River southwesterly to the point of intersection of Route 711 (Alvarado Road) and the Virginia Creeper Trail; thence west with Route 711 to the intersection of Route 711 and Route 710 (Sweet Hollow Rod); thence south with Route 710 to the Virginia-Tennessee state line; with the Virginia-Tennessee state line 1.7 miles to the intersection of election district E-91/C-91 line at Camp Hollow Branch/Mays Branch; thence go north approximately 2 miles with Camp Hollow Branch/Mays Branch to its intersection with South Holston reservoir; thence northeasterly with South Holston reservoir approximately 2.1 miles to the intersection of the South Holston reservoir, the middle fork of the Holston River, and the south fork of the Holston River; thence 2.26 miles north or upstream with the middle fork of the Holston River to where a creek empties into the river, thence upstream with said creek to where it crosses under the Virginia Creeper Trail being approximately ~~1 mile~~ 1.6 miles from the intersection of the Virginia Creeper Trail and Route 677; thence northwest with the Virginia Creeper Trail to intersection of the Virginia Creeper Trail and the American Electric Power Company power transmission line; thence following the American Electric Power Company power transmission line northeast to its intersection with Fifteenmile Creek; thence following

Fifteenmile Creek northeast to its intersection with Route 58 (Jeb Stuart Hwy); thence southeast along Route 58 for 300 feet to its intersection with Route 677 (Watauga Road); ~~Route 677 (Watauga Road);~~ thence east with Route 677 approximately 3.7 miles to the intersection of Route 677 and Route 705 (Honey Locust Road); thence south with Route 705 to the intersection of Route 705 and Route 706 (Rivermont Drive); thence east with Route 706 approximately 1.4 miles to an intersection with Greenway Creek, then south on Greenway Creek to a point in the centerline of the middle fork of the Holston River; thence with the centerline of the middle fork of the Holston River northeasterly approximately 15.8 miles ~~thence east with Route 706 approximately 3.7 miles to the point where Route 706 cross Cedar Creek which is approximately 100 feet from the intersection of Route 706 and Route 803 (Cedar Creek Road); thence south with Cedar Creek 200 feet to a point in the center of the middle fork of the Holston River; thence with the centerline of the middle fork of the Holston River northeasterly approximately 11.5 miles to the intersection of the Holston River and the Washington-Smyth County line, the point of beginning.~~

The polling place for the Rhea Valley precinct is the Rhea Valley Elementary School.

b. *The Damascus precinct is described as follows:*

Beginning at a point where the Tennessee line intersects with Route 710 (Sweet Hollow Road); thence north with Route 710 to the intersection of Route 710 and Route 711 (Alvarado Road); thence east with Route 711 to the crossing the Virginia Creeper Trail to the middle of the south fork of the Holston River; thence with the south fork of the Holston River in a northeasterly direction to a point where Buzzard Den Branch empties into the river; thence up Buzzard Den Branch to its head; thence from the head of Buzzard Den Branch to the top of Iron Mountain; thence southwest with the top of Iron Mountain to a point at Shaw's Gap; thence with a forest trail in a southerly direction and continuing on the trail until the forest trail intersects with Route 58 (Jeb Stuart Hwy) at a point 0.5 mile west of Bare Tree Gap; thence in a westerly direction with Route 58 to a point where Route 58 and a forest trail intersect; thence continuing in a southerly direction with the forest trail to the top of Straight Mountain; thence down Straight Mountain at its steepest point to White Top Laurel Creek and an intersection of Steep Branch; thence continuing in a southerly direction with Steep Branch to a point where Steep Branch intersects a forest trail at the top of Chestnut Mountain at Chestnut Flats; thence with the forest trail across the top of Chestnut Mountain to the Virginia/Tennessee boundary line; thence with the Tennessee line in a westerly direction to the point of beginning.

The polling place for Damascus precinct is the Damascus Middle School.

c. *Green Cove precinct is described as follows:*

Beginning on top of Iron Mountain at the Washington-Smyth County line; thence southwest with the top of Iron Mountain to a point at Shaw's Gap; thence with a forest trail in a southerly direction and continuing on the trail until the trail intersects with Route 58 (Jeb Stuart Hwy) at a point 0.5 mile west of Bare Tree Gap; thence in a westerly direction with Route 58 to a point where Route 58 and a forest trail intersect; thence continuing in a southerly direction with the forest trail to the top of Straight Mountain; thence down Straight Mountain at its steepest point to White Top Laurel Creek and an intersection of Steep Branch; thence continuing in a southerly direction with Steep Branch to a point where Steep Branch intersects a forest trail at the top of Chestnut Mountain at Chestnut Flats; thence with the forest trail across the top of Chestnut Mountain to the Virginia/Tennessee boundary line; thence east with the Tennessee line to the Grayson County line; thence east, northeast, and north with the Grayson County line to the Smyth County line; thence southwest and northwest with the Smyth County line to the top of Iron Mountain and the point of beginning.

The polling place for Green Cove precinct is Green Cove Community Building.

(g) *Election district F-~~2001~~2011, precincts and polling places.*

(1) *District boundaries. Election district F-~~2001~~2011 is described as follows:*

Beginning at a point on the Virginia-Tennessee state line at the western corporation line of the City of Bristol, Virginia; thence with the Virginia-Tennessee state line go west approximately 4.6 miles to the southeast corner of Scott County; thence north with the Scott County line 8.1 miles to the south line of Russell County; thence northeast with the Washington-Russell County line approximately 12.5 miles to the northwest corner of the Jefferson district; thence following the Jefferson district line in a southwardly direction 1.2 miles to a point in the centerline of the north fork of the Holston River; thence with the centerline of the north fork of the Holston River, upstream, 1.5 miles to the intersection of Large Creek and the Holston River; thence with Large Creek, upstream, to the intersection of Large Creek and Route 626 (Large Hollow Road); thence southeast with Route 626 approximately 3 miles to the intersection of Route 626 and Route 700 (Rich Valley Road); thence west with Route 700 approximately 0.8 mile to the intersection of Route 700 and Route 614 (Mountain Spring Road); thence south with Route 614 approximately 2.0 miles to the intersection of Route 614 and Route 633 (Black Hollow Road); thence northeast along Route 633 to its intersection with Route 614 (Childress Hollow Road); thence south along Route 614 to its intersection with Route 662 (Spring Valley Road); thence west along Route 662 to its intersection with Route 645 (Wallace Pike); thence west along Route 645 to its intersection with Route 661 (Black Hollow Road); thence north along Route 661 to its intersection with Route 657 (Reedy Creek Road); thence west along Route 657 for 0.9 miles to its intersection with a powerline easement; thence northwest along powerline easement to a point on the top of Countiss Ridge; thence continuing northwest down the ridge to the powerline easement's intersection with Route 625

(Harleywood Road (point being 0.25 miles from the intersection of Route 633 and Route 625); thence; ~~thence southwest with Route 633 approximately 0.75 miles to the intersection of Route 633 and Route 661 and Route 633 (Contiss Road); thence west with Route 633 (Contiss Road) to the intersection of Route 633 and Route 625 (Harleywood Road);~~ thence with south with Route 625 to the intersection of Route 625 and Route 633 (Dettor Road); thence with Route 633 to the intersection of Route 633 and Route 633/659 (Reedy Creek Road); thence east with Route 659 (Reedy Creek Road) to a point of intersection with Pairgin Road, also known as Route 659; thence south with Pairgin Road 1.5 miles to the intersection of Pairgin Road and a major power transmission line; thence southwest along said major power transmission line to its intersection with a stream in Possum Hollow; thence following said stream in Possum Hollow southeast to its intersection with Route 645 (Wallace Pike); ~~Route 657 (Rocky Hill Road); thence south with Route 657 through the intersection with Route 656, where Route 657 becomes Goose Creek Road, down to the intersection of Route 657 and Route 645 (Wallace Pike);~~ thence west with Route 645 approximately 0.8 mile 0.4 mile to a point where Route 645 intersects ~~a creek near the intersection of Route 645 and Route 655 (Oak Grove Road)~~ Goose Creek; thence following the creek south to the Bristol City Limit line; thence following the Bristol City Limit line to point of beginning on the Tennessee line.

(2) *Precincts and polling places.*

a. *Burson Place precinct is described as follows:*

Beginning with the intersection of the Bristol city limits and Route 641 (Campground Road); thence north 5 miles to Route 700 (Rich Valley Road); thence east with Route 700 1.3 miles to Route 627 (Wolf Run Road); thence following Route 627 to the intersection of Route 627 and Route 628 (Lone Star Road); thence northeast with Route 628 to a point in the sharp curve of Route 628 where Route 628 crosses Little Wolf Run Creek at the base of the steep ridge; thence up the steepest portion of the ridge northeast approximately 0.1 mile to the top of the ridge; thence northwest with the top of the ridge approximately 0.1 mile; thence down a spur northeast with the fire trail 0.3 mile to Route 622 (Nordyke Road); thence following Route 622 in a northwesterly direction 1.3 miles to the intersection of Route 622 and Route 616 (Caney Valley Road); thence in an easterly direction 1.5 miles following Route 616 to the intersection of Route 616 and Route 798 (Percheron Road); thence following Route 798 in a northerly direction 0.85 mile to the intersection of Route 798 and Appaloosa Road; thence north 0.2 mile to the center of the north fork of the Holston River; thence in a northeasterly direction 7.4 miles upstream to the intersection of Large Creek; thence with Large Creek, upstream, to the intersection of Large Creek and Route 626 (Large Hollow Road); thence southeast with Route 626 approximately 3 miles to the intersection of Route 626 and Route 700 (Rich Valley Road); thence west with Route 700 approximately 0.8 mile to the intersection of Route 700 and Route 614 (Mountain Spring Road); thence south with Route 614 approximately 2.0 miles to the intersection of Route 614 and Route 633 (Black Hollow Road); thence northeast along Route 633 to its intersection with Route 614 (Childress Hollow Road); thence south along Route 614 to its intersection with Route 662 (Spring Valley Road); thence west along Route 662 to its intersection with Route 645 (Wallace Pike); thence west along Route 645 to its intersection with Route 661 (Black Hollow Road); thence north along Route 661 to

its intersection with Route 657 (Reedy Creek Road); thence west along Route 657 for 0.9 miles to its intersection with a powerline easement; thence northwest along powerline easement to a point on the top of Countiss Ridge; thence continuing northwest down the ridge to the powerline easement's intersection with Route 625 (Harleywood Road (point being 0.25 miles from the intersection of Route 633 and Route 625)); thence; ~~thence southwest with Route 633 approximately 0.75 miles to the intersection of Route 633 and Route 661 and Route 633 (Contiss Road); thence west with Route 633 (Contiss Road) to the intersection of Route 633 and Route 625 (Harleywood Road);~~ thence with south with Route 625 to the intersection of Route 625 and Route 633 (Dettor Road); thence with Route 633 to the intersection of Route 633 and Route 633/659 (Reedy Creek Road); thence east with Route 659 (Reedy Creek Road) to a point of intersection with Pairgin Road, also known as Route 659; thence south with Pairgin Road 1.5 miles to the intersection of Pairgin Road and a major power transmission line; thence southwest along said major power transmission line to its intersection with a stream in Possum Hollow; thence following said stream in Possum Hollow southeast to its intersection with Route 645 (Wallace Pike);~~Route 657 (Rocky Hill Road); thence south with Route 657 through the intersection with Route 656, where Route 657 becomes Goose Creek Road, down to the intersection of Route 657 and Route 645 (Wallace Pike);~~ thence west with Route 645 approximately 0.8 miles 0.4 mile to a point where Route 645 intersects Goose Creek ~~a creek near the intersection of Route 645 and Route 655 (Oak Grove Road);~~ thence following the creek south to the Bristol City Limit line; thence following the Bristol City Limits line west to the point of beginning at the intersection with Route 641.

The polling place for Burson Place precinct is the Goodson-Kinderhook Fire Department.

b. Mendota precinct is described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the corner where the Washington-Scott and Russell County lines meet; thence in a northeasterly direction 12.5 miles following the Russell-Washington County line to the intersection of the B-91/F-91 election district line at the northeast corner of the F-91 election district; thence following the Jefferson district line in a southwardly direction 1.2 miles to a point in the centerline of the north fork of the Holston River; thence southwest with the north fork of the Holston River 5.9 miles downstream to a point in the center of the Holston River north of the intersection of Percheron Road and Alpaloosa Road; thence south 0.2 mile to that intersection; thence following Route 798 (Percheron Road) in a southerly direction 0.85 mile to the intersection of Route 798 and Route 616 (Caney Valley Road); thence in a westerly direction following Route 616 1.5 miles to the intersection of Route 616 and Route 622 (Nordyke Road); thence in a southeasterly direction 1.3 miles to a point on Route 622 where Route 622 intersects a fire trail; thence southwest up a steep spur with the fire trail 0.3 mile to the top of the ridge; thence southeast with the top of ridge 0.1 mile; thence southwest down the steepest portion of the ridge 0.1 mile to the base of a steep ridge, where Route 628 (Lone Star Road) crosses Little Wolf Run Creek at a sharp curve on Route 628; thence with Route 628 southwest 1 mile to the intersection of Route 628

and Route 627 (Wolf Run Road); thence in a northerly and westerly direction 1.4 miles to an intersection of the old Southern Railroad R.O.W. and Route 627; thence following the old Southern Railway R.O.W. northwesterly to the intersection with Route 616 (Willow Branch Road); thence in a southwesterly direction 2.8 miles following Route 616 to the Scott County line; thence along the Washington-Scott County line in a northwesterly direction to the point of beginning.

The polling place for Mendota precinct is Mendota Community Center.

c. Valley Institute precinct is described as follows:

Beginning at a point where the Washington-Scott County line intersects the Virginia-Tennessee state line; thence following the Virginia-Tennessee state line eastward to the Bristol, Virginia, City limit line; thence following the Bristol, Virginia, City limit line to the intersection of Route 641 (Campground Road); thence in a northerly direction of Route 641 to Route 700 (Rich Valley Road); thence to the intersection of Route 627 (Wolf Run Road); thence northwest with Route 627 2.4 miles to an intersection with the old Southern Railroad R.O.W.; thence following the old Southern Railway R.O.W. northwesterly to Route 616 (Willow Branch Road); thence in a southwesterly direction 2.8 miles following Route 616 to the Scott County line; thence in a southerly direction following the Washington-Scott County line to the point of beginning.

The polling place for Valley Institute precinct is the Valley Institute Elementary School.

(h) Election district G-~~2001~~2011, precincts and polling places.

(1) District boundaries. Election district G-~~2001~~2011 is described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the Virginia-Tennessee state line on the northwest shoreline of the South Holston reservoir; thence with the South Holston reservoir shoreline upstream to a point where it intersects with Sportsman Drive at the Sportsman Marina; thence north with Sportsman Drive to the intersection of Sportsman Drive and Route 664 (Lake Road); thence west with Route 664 to the intersection of Route 664 and Route 669 (Bowman Road); thence north with Route 669 to the intersection of Route 669 and Route 75 (Green Spring Road); thence southwest with Route 75 to the intersection of Route 75 and Route 663 (Shell Road); thence with Route 663 to the intersection of Route 663 and Route 665 (Cleveland Road); thence northeast with Route 665 to the intersection of Route 665 and Route 661 (Neal Road); thence with Route 671 to its intersection with the American Electric Power Company power transmission line; thence southwest along the American Electric Power Company power transmission line for 0.55 miles to its intersection with a small stream or drainage course; thence west along said drainage course down to a point where it intersects Route 663 (Golden View Drive); ~~thence southwest with Route 665 to the intersection of Route 665 and Route 663 (Golden View Drive);~~ thence north on Route

663 approximately ~~3 miles~~ 0.75 mile to a point where it is intersected by Spring Creek; thence north or upstream with Spring Creek to where it intersects with Route 647 (Old Jonesboro Road); thence northeast with Route 647 to the intersection of Route 647 and Route 611 (Spring Creek Road); thence north with Route 611 to the intersection of Route 611 and U.S. Highway 11 (Lee Hwy); thence continuing north with Route 611 to the intersection of Route 611 and Route 883 (Repass Road); thence east with Route 883 approximately 1650 feet to the intersection of Route 883 and Milton Drive; thence north with Milton Drive to the intersection of Milton Drive and Route 645 (Wyndale Road); thence west with Route 645 approximately 40 feet to an intersection with Route 645 and an unnamed drive or trail; thence north with the unnamed drive or trail to the point here it is crossed by the American Electric Power Company electric transmission line; thence southwest with the American Electric Power Company electric transmission line approximately 1.16 miles to where it intersects Route 804 (Rust Hollow Road); thence west with Route 804 to the intersection of Route 804 and Beaver Creek; thence following Beaver Creek northeast to its intersection with Route 611 (Providence Road); thence northwest along Route 611 to its intersection with Route 633 (Black Hollow Road); thence southwest along Route 633 to its intersection with Route 614 (Childress Hollow Road);); thence south along Route 614 to its intersection with Route 662 (Spring Valley Road); thence west along Route 662 to its intersection with Route 645 (Wallace Pike); thence west along Route 645 to its intersection with Route 661 (Black Hollow Road); thence north along Route 661 to its intersection with Route 657 (Reedy Creek Road); thence west along Route 657 for 0.9 miles to its intersection with a powerline easement; thence northwest along powerline easement to a point on the top of Countiss Ridge; thence continuing northwest down the ridge to the powerline easement's intersection with Route 625 (Harleywood Road (point being 0.25 miles from the intersection of Route 633 and Route 625)); ~~Route 662 (Spring Valley Road)~~; thence southwest with ~~Route 662~~ to the intersection of ~~Route 662 and Route 614 (Childress Hollow Road)~~; thence north with ~~Route 614~~ to the intersection of ~~Route 614 and Route 633 (Black Hollow Road)~~; thence southwest with ~~Route 633~~ to the intersection of ~~Route 633 and Route 614 (Mountain Spring Road)~~; thence southwest with ~~Route 633~~ approximately 0.75 miles to the intersection of ~~Route 633 and Route 661 and Route 633 (Countiss Road)~~; thence west with ~~Route 633 (Countiss Road)~~ to the intersection of ~~Route 633 and Route 625 (Harleywood Road)~~; thence south with ~~Route 625~~ to the intersection of ~~Route 625 and Route 633 (Dettor Road)~~; thence with ~~Route 633~~ to the intersection of ~~Route 633 and Route 633/659 (Reedy Creek Road)~~; thence east with ~~Route 659 (Reedy Creek Road)~~ to a point of intersection with ~~Pairgin Road, also known as Route 659~~; thence south with ~~Pairgin Road~~ 1.5 miles to the intersection of ~~Pairgin Road~~ and a major power transmission line; thence southwest along said major power transmission line to its intersection with a stream in Possum Hollow; thence following said stream in Possum Hollow southeast to its intersection with ~~Route 645 (Wallace Pike)~~; ~~Route 657 (Rocky Hill Road)~~; thence south with ~~Route 657~~ through the intersection with ~~Route 656~~, where ~~Route 657~~ becomes Goose Creek Road, down to the intersection of ~~Route 657 and Route 645 (Wallace Pike)~~; thence west with ~~Route 645~~ approximately ~~0.8 miles~~ 0.4 mile to a point where ~~Route 645~~ intersects Goose Creek a creek near the intersection of ~~Route 645 and Route 655 (Oak Grove Road)~~; thence following the creek south to the Bristol City Limit line; thence going east with the Bristol City Limit line to the intersection with the Virginia-Tennessee state line; thence with the Virginia-Tennessee state line 7.4 miles to the point of beginning.

(2) *Precincts and polling places.*a. *High Point precinct is described as follows:*

Beginning at a point on the Virginia-Tennessee state line on the northwest shoreline of the South Holston reservoir; thence with the South Holston reservoir shoreline upstream to a point where it intersects with Sportsman Drive at the Sportsman Marina; thence north with Sportsman Drive to the intersection of Sportsman Drive and Route 664 (Lake Road); thence west with Route 664 to the intersection of Route 664 and Route 669 (Bowman Road); thence north with Route 669 to the intersection of Route 669 and Route 75 (Green Spring Road); thence southwest with Route 75 to the intersection of Route 75 and Route 663 (Shell Road); thence with Route 663 to the intersection of Route 663 and Route 665 (Cleveland Road); thence northeast with Route 665 to the intersection of Route 665 and Route 661 (Neal Road); thence with Route 671 to its intersection with the American Electric Power Company power transmission line; thence southwest along the American Electric Power Company power transmission line for 0.55 miles to its intersection with a small stream or drainage course; thence west along said drainage course down to a point where it intersects Route 663 (Golden View Drive); ~~thence southwest with Route 665 to the intersection of Route 665 and Route 663 (Golden View Drive);~~ thence northwest with Route 663 to the intersection of Route 663 and Route 647 (Old Jonesboro Road); thence south with Route 647 to the intersection of Route 647 and Route 808 (Halls Bottom Road); thence west 0.5 mile with Route 808 to the intersection with Sinking Creek; thence with Sinking Creek and its bed southwest to a point along Sinking Creek near Preston Spring; thence moving up a ridge in a northwest direction for a point on the Bristol City Limit line; thence southwest with the Bristol City Limit line to the intersection with the Tennessee-Virginia state line; thence east with the Tennessee-Virginia state line to the beginning.

The polling place for High Point precinct is High Point Elementary School.

b. *John Battle precinct is described as follows:*

Beginning at a point on the northeast end of the Bristol, Virginia, corporation line; thence southeasterly with the prolongation of the City of Bristol eastern corporation line and a low depression to the intersection of Sinking Creek; thence northeast with Sinking Creek and its bed to Route 808 (Halls Bottom Road); thence east on Route 808 to the intersection of Route 647 (Old Jonesboro Road); thence northeasterly on Route 647 to Route 663 (Goldenview Drive); thence southeast with Route 663 to the intersection with Spring Creek; thence north or upstream with Spring Creek to where it intersects with Route 647 (Old Jonesboro Road); thence northeast with Route 647 to the intersection of Route 647 and Route 611 (Spring Creek Road); thence north with Route 611 to the intersection of Route 611 and U.S. Highway 11 (Lee Hwy); thence continuing north with Route 611 to the intersection of Route 611 and Route 883 (Repass Road); thence east with Route 883 approximately 1650 feet to the

intersection of Route 883 and Milton Drive; thence north with Milton Drive to the intersection of Milton Drive and Route 645 (Wyndale Road); thence west with Route 645 approximately 40 feet to an intersection with Route 645 and an unnamed drive or trail; thence north with the unnamed drive or trail to the point here it is crossed by the American Electric Power Company electric transmission line; thence southwest with the American Electric Power Company electric transmission line approximately 1.16 miles to where it intersects Route 804 (Rust Hollow Road); thence continuing southwest with the American Electric Power Company electric transmission line 1 mile to the intersection with Route 662 (Spring Valley Road); thence southeast with Route 662 through the intersection with Route 645 (Wyndale Road) the a point on the N&W Railroad; thence southwest following the N&W Railroad to the intersection with Beaver Creek; thence south to southwest with Beaver Creek to the Bristol, Virginia, City Limit line; thence following the Bristol, Virginia City Limit line south and west to the point of beginning.

The polling place for John Battle precinct is John Battle High School.

c. Wallace precinct is described as follows:

Beginning at a point being the intersection of Route 804 (Rust Hollow Road) and the American Electric Power Company electric transmission line; thence west with Route 804 to the intersection of Route 804 and Beaver Creek; thence following Beaver Creek northeast to its intersection with Route 611 (Providence Road); thence northwest along Route 611 to its intersection with Route 633 (Black Hollow Road); thence southwest along Route 633 to its intersection with Route 614 (Childress Hollow Road);); thence south along Route 614 to its intersection with Route 662 (Spring Valley Road); thence west along Route 662 to its intersection with Route 645 (Wallace Pike); thence west along Route 645 to its intersection with Route 661 (Black Hollow Road); thence north along Route 661 to its intersection with Route 657 (Reedy Creek Road); thence west along Route 657 for 0.9 miles to its intersection with a powerline easement; thence northwest along powerline easement to a point on the top of Countiss Ridge; thence continuing northwest down the ridge to the powerline easment's intersection with Route 625 (Harleywood Road (point being 0.25 miles from the intersection of Route 633 and Route 625)); ~~Route 662 (Spring Valley Road); thence southwest with Route 662 to the intersection of Route 662 and Route 614 (Childress Hollow Road); thence north with Route 614 to the intersection of Route 614 and Route 633 (Black Hollow Road); thence southwest with Route 633 to the intersection of Route 633 and Route 614 (Mountain Spring Road); thence southwest with Route 633 approximately 0.75 miles to the intersection of Route 633 and Route 661 and Route 633 (Countiss Road); thence west with Route 633 (Countiss Road) to the intersection of Route 633 and Route 625 (Harleywood Road);~~ thence south with Route 625 to the intersection of Route 625 and Route 633 (Dettor Road); thence with Route 633 to the intersection of Route 633 and Route 633/659 (Reedy Creek Road); thence east with Route 659 (Reedy Creek Road) to a point of intersection with Pairgin Road, also known as Route 659; thence south

with Pairgin Road 1.5 miles to the intersection of Pairgin Road and a major power transmission line; thence southwest along said major power transmission line to its intersection with a stream in Possum Hollow; thence following said stream in Possum Hollow southeast to its intersection with Route 645 (Wallace Pike); ~~Route 657 (Rocky Hill Road); thence south with Route 657 through the intersection with Route 656, where Route 657 becomes Goose Creek Road, down to the intersection of Route 657 and Route 645 (Wallace Pike);~~ thence west with Route 645 approximately ~~0.8 miles~~ 0.4 mile to a point where Route 645 intersects Goose Creek ~~a creek near the intersection of Route 645 and Route 655 (Oak Grove Road);~~ thence following the Goose Creek ~~creek~~ south to the Bristol City Limit line; thence going east with the Bristol City Limit line to the intersection with Beaver Creek; thence following Beaver Creek north and upstream to the intersection of Beaver Creek and the N&W Railroad; thence following the N&W Railroad northeast to a point just south of the intersection of Route 662 (Spring Valley Road) and Route 645 (Wyndale Road); thence across to Route 662 and going north with Route 662 to where it intersects with the American Electric Power Company electric transmission line; thence northeast with the American Electric Power Company electric transmission line 1 mile to the point of beginning.

The polling place for Wallace precinct is Wallace Middle School.

Sec. 22-33. Absentee voter election district.

There is hereby established for the county in the Commonwealth Office of Department of Motor Vehicles at 25552 Lee Highway, in Abingdon, Virginia, a central absentee voter election district, which election district shall be used for all elections held in the county ~~except for those including the~~ municipal elections held in the various towns located within the county and primary elections. Such district shall be established in accordance with Code of Virginia, §§ 24.2-710--24.2-712, and all other applicable statutes of the Code of Virginia contained in Code of Virginia, § 24.2-700 et seq.

Secs. 22-34--22-44. Reserved.

ARTICLE III. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Sec. 22-44 – 22-55. Reserved.

ARTICLE IV. SCHOOL BOARD

Sec. 22-61. School board elections generally.

Pursuant to Code of Virginia, Section 22.1-57.3, the referendum on election of school board members in the county having been approved by the voters at an election held November 3, 1992, the board of supervisors hereby creates and establishes election districts for the members of the county school board who will be first elected in November 1995, and subsequent years as set forth in this article. The school board election districts, voting precincts, and polling places shall be the election

districts as set forth in Article II of this Chapter and shall so continue unless and until the same shall be changed as provided by law.:

Sec. 22-57. Number of members.

The school board shall consist of seven members, one member being elected from each of the seven election districts by the qualified voters of such election districts as are set forth in this article.

Sec. 22-58. Terms.

Elections of school board members shall be held to coincide with the election of members of the board of supervisors. Each elected school board member shall serve a term of four years, corresponding to the four-year term for each of the members of the board of supervisors. The term of each elected school board member and board of supervisors member from the same district will run concurrently; and, therefore, the elections of the school board member and board of supervisors member from the same district shall be held simultaneously.

Sec. 22-59. School Board Election Districts, Voting Precincts, Polling Places, and Central absentee voter election district.

The central absentee voter election district, the precincts, precinct boundary lines, names of precincts and polling places for the election of members to the school board shall be those set forth in Article II of this Chapter, which are the same as those provided for the election of members to the board of supervisors.

The vote on this motion was as follows: (5-0)

<i>Ms. Mumpower</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Owens</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Ms. Price</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Reynolds</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Straten</i>	<i>Aye</i>

Scüvener's Note: The Election District Maps referenced above is included as Minutes Exhibits Item 2011-06-14-A.

- c. Public Hearing and Consideration of Adoption of an Ordinance to Amend the code of the County of Washington, Virginia by Adding Sections 34-62 and 34-63 to Authorize the Sheriff in the Interest of Public Safety to Impose a Curfew and/or Controlled Perimeter Access after Declaration of Emergency in the County of Washington, Virginia

Ms. Phillips provided introductory remarks. She explained the proposed ordinance would clarify authority and procedures to establish a curfew and controlled access to areas that are affected by circumstances that result in an official declaration of local emergency. The Board was provided at stations with a revised ordinance for consideration, which includes minor changes requested by Sheriff Fred Newman. Sheriff Newman has requested Board consideration of language to be added in parts of the ordinance where the sheriff is authorized to do something that words be added to say "or his designee."

Ms. Phillips explained this ordinance was adopted on an emergency basis soon after the tornado event on April 27-28. The Code of Virginia requires the emergency ordinance for permanent enforcement be adopted again through standard procedures of advance public notice and hearing within sixty days of its emergency adoption.

Discussions ensued among the Board and Ms. Phillips concerning the proposed ordinance.

Mr. Straten explained his concern with the proposed ordinance is the Sheriff's Office can establish a curfew without review by the governing body. He suggested there be language added to the proposed ordinance that allows the governing body to step in if the local law enforcement oversteps their boundaries. It is difficult to classify in the ordinance every instance that may be declared an emergency by law enforcement. Mr. Straten stated he does not feel comfortable the ordinance has been reviewed to prevent abuse of power.

Ms. Phillips explained the curfew arises only if official declaration of an emergency is made in the County. No curfew shall be imposed except in areas and times justified to protect public health, safety and welfare. The Board of Supervisors, at any point, could adopt a Resolution requesting the curfew be lifted.

Mr. Straten stated his concerns are about future Sheriff's Office administrations, and not the current administration.

Ms. Mumpower opened the public hearing and invited comments in support of and in opposition to the proposed ordinance.

The following individuals addressed the Board:

- Mr. Richard MacBeth addressed the Board and explained he concurs with the remarks made by Mr. Straten. There should be language in the proposed ordinance that allows the governing body the right to supersede the Sheriff's Office. Without the language, there could be problems.

There being no further comments, Ms. Mumpower declared the public hearing closed.

Further discussions ensued between the Board and Ms. Phillips about strengthening the language in the proposed ordinance to grant more authority to the governing body.

Ms. Phillips advised the best solution if such events occur is communication between the Board and Sheriff's Administration such as adoption of a Resolution.

On motion of Mr. Owens, second by Ms. Price, the Board acted to adopt the following ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, VIRGINIA BY ADDING SECTIONS 34-62 AND 34-63 TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY SHERIFF IN THE INTEREST OF PUBLIC SAFETY TO IMPOSE A CURFEW AND/OR CONTROLLED PERIMETER ACCESS AFTER DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY IN THE COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, VIRGINIA

WHEREAS, Virginia Code section 15.2-1200 established that the governing body of any county may adopt such measures as deemed expedient to secure and promote the health, safety and

general welfare of its inhabitants, which are not inconsistent with the general laws of the Commonwealth; and

WHEREAS, Virginia Code section 15.2-1714 established that the chief law-enforcement officer of any county may establish areas, zones or perimeters by the placement of sheriff lines or barricades as are reasonably necessary to facilitate the movement of vehicular and pedestrian traffic into, out of, and around the scene of an emergency situation where life, limb or property may be endangered; and

WHEREAS, having considered these powers and the risk to public health, safety, and welfare that may be created by the occurrence of natural disaster, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Washington, Virginia, finds it in the best interests of the public health, safety, and welfare to provide for the imposition of curfew and controlled access to areas detrimentally affected by natural disaster.

NOW, THEREFORE, ON THE BASIS OF THE FOREGOING, and in the best interests of the public health, welfare, and safety, having held a public hearing for consideration of these matters, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Washington, Virginia (Board), hereby ordains the following:

- 1. That this ordinance shall become effective immediately;*
- 2. That this ordinance shall repeal and replace the ordinance to enact Sections 34-62 and 34-63 adopted by the Board on an emergency basis on May 3, 2011;*
- 3. That should any section or provision of this emergency ordinance be decided to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section or provision of this ordinance or the Washington County Code; and*
- 4. That Chapter 34 of the Code of the County of Washington, Virginia, shall be amended by adding sections 34-62 and 34-63, as follows:*

CODE OF THE COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, VIRGINIA (2002, as amended)

CHAPTER 34 – LAW ENFORCEMENT

ARTICLE IV – GENERAL POWER AND AUTHORITY

Section 34-62. Curfew.

(a) Pursuant to the powers granted to the county by Virginia Code section 15.2-1200, and in the interest of promoting public safety, the county sheriff or his designee is authorized hereby to impose a curfew after the declaration of an emergency in the county, in accordance with the provisions of this section.

(b) As used in this section:

“Curfew” means an order prohibiting persons from being present on any street, road, alley, avenue, park or other public place in the county or any portion thereof designated as controlled by curfew during specified times of the day or night;

“Natural Disaster” means any hurricane, tornado, storm, flood, high water, wind-driven water, tidal wave, earthquake, drought, fire or other natural catastrophe resulting in damage, hardship, suffering, or possible loss of life; and

“Manmade disaster” means any condition following an attack by an enemy or foreign nation upon the county that results in substantial damage of property or injury to persons in the United States, and may be by use of bombs, missiles, shell fire, nuclear, radiological, chemical or biological means or other weapons or by overt paramilitary actions; terrorism, foreign and domestic, any industrial, nuclear or transportation accident, explosion, conflagration, power

failure, or other condition such as sabotage, oil spills, and other injurious environmental contaminations that threaten or cause damage to property, human suffering, hardship or loss of life.

- (c) The curfew may be declared upon a determination that such action is necessary for the preservation of life or property or for the implementation of emergency mitigation, preparedness, response actions, or recovery actions anticipated or resulting from the dangers caused by a natural or manmade disaster, or the resulting effects thereof, pursuant to the procedure described in this section.
- (d) The procedure by which a curfew may be declared and enforced shall be as follows:
1. The authority conferred by this section shall arise only after either the state or the county declares an emergency in accordance with the provisions of Virginia Code section 44-146.19 or 44-146.21 for a geographical area located within the county.
 2. The curfew shall be announced in such manner as is reasonably calculated to provide notice to the public of the imposition of the curfew. Termination of curfew shall be in like manner.
 3. No curfew shall be imposed except in areas and at times that can be justified as necessary for the public safety.
- (e) After the declaration and public announcement of a curfew, it shall be unlawful for :
1. Any person, after having been warned by a law-enforcement officer, to remain on any street, road, alley, avenue, park or other public place in the county, or in any vehicle operating or parked thereon, in any portion of the county designated as subject to the curfew; and
 2. The owner or proprietor of any retail, wholesale, or eating and drinking establishment, entertainment, other person in control of such establishment, to allow any person to remain on the premises without the express written permission of the sheriff or his designee; provided, however, that this prohibition shall not apply to lodging establishments serving registered guests; and
 3. The sheriff or his designee shall enforce the curfew throughout its duration.
- (f) The following persons shall be exempt from the provisions of this section while on duty or traveling to and from work:
1. Law enforcement personnel;
 2. Hospital personnel;
 3. County employees;
 4. Permitted volunteers;
 5. Military personnel;
 6. Employees of public utility companies;
 7. Private emergency medical transport workers; and
 8. Other emergency workers, residents, or business owners and employees, as authorized by the sheriff or his designee.
- (g) Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit or restrict travel to a hospital in the event of a medical emergency, nor shall such travel be considered in violation of this section.
- (h) A violation of this shall be punishable as a Class 1 misdemeanor.

Section 34-63. Controlled access.

For the duration of curfew, the sheriff or his designee may issue permits to those individuals authorized to enter a restricted access area as provided for in this article.

The vote on this motion was as follows: (5-0)

Ms. Mumpower *Aye*
Mr. Owens *Aye*
Ms. Price *Aye*
Mr. Reynolds *Aye*
Mr. Straten *Aye*

- d. Public Hearing and Consideration of Adoption of an Ordinance to Amend Chapter 58 of the Code of the County of Washington, Virginia to Add Section 58-66 to Authorize Abatement of Tax on Damaged and Destroyed Buildings by Events that Cause Declaration of Local or State Emergency

Ms. Phillips provided introductory remarks. The proposed ordinance would establish authority for the County Commissioner of the Revenue to abate real property tax on structures that are razed, destroyed, or damaged by a natural or accidental event that resulted in declaration of local and state emergency. The percentage of abatement would be computed according to the ratio which the portion of the year the structure was unfit for use bears to the entire calendar year. A form of this ordinance was adopted on an emergency bases in May 2011 in response to the tremendous damage incurred during the April 27-28 storm event. State law requires for permanent enforcement that it be adopted again though standard procedures of advance public notice and hearing within sixty days of its emergency adoption.

Ms. Mumpower opened the public hearing and invited comments in support of and in opposition to the proposed ordinance.

There being no comments, Ms. Mumpower declared the public hearing closed.

On motion of Ms. Price, second by Mr. Reynolds, the Board acted to adopt the following ordinance:

***AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, VIRGINIA
 BY ADDING SECTION 58-66 TO AUTHORIZE ABATEMENT OF TAX ON DAMAGED
 BUILDINGS UPON DECLARATION OF LOCAL AND STATE EMERGENCY***

WHEREAS, Virginia Code section 58.1-3222 authorized the governing body of any county to provide for the abatement of levies on buildings which are razed, destroyed, or damaged by a fortuitous happening beyond the control of the owner; and

WHEREAS, an extreme weather event and tornado on April 28, 2011, razed, destroyed, or damaged more than two hundred structures within the county; and

WHEREAS, having considered the statutory authority described above and the effects of the recent natural disaster, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Washington, Virginia, finds it in the best interests of the public health, safety, and welfare to authorize an abatement of taxation on buildings, as such is allowed by state law.

NOW, THEREFORE, ON THE BASIS OF THE FOREGOING, and in the best interests of the public health, welfare, and safety, having held a public hearing for consideration of these matters, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Washington, Virginia (Board), hereby ordains the following:

- 1. That this ordinance shall become effective immediately;***

- 2. *That this ordinance shall repeal and replace the ordinance to enact Section 58-66 adopted by the Board on an emergency basis on May 10, 2011;*
- 3. *That should any section or provision of this emergency ordinance be decided to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section or provision of this ordinance or the Washington County Code; and*
- 4. *That Chapter 58 of the Code of the County of Washington, Virginia, shall be amended by adding section 58-66, as follows:*

CODE OF THE COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, VIRGINIA (2002, as amended)
CHAPTER 58 – TAXATION
ARTICLE II – AD VALOREM
DIVISION 3 – REAL PROPERTY
SUBDIVISION I – IN GENERAL

Section 58-66. Abatement of levies on buildings razed, destroyed or damaged by fortuitous happenings.

- (a) *Buildings that are razed, destroyed, or damaged due to natural or accidental events beyond the control of the owner shall receive abatement for tax levies for the year in which the event occurs, computed according to the ratio which the portion of the year the building was fit for use, occupancy, or enjoyment bears to the entire calendar year. No such abatement shall occur unless:*
 - 1. *The destruction or damage to such building occurred in the course of an event that resulted in a declaration of local and state emergency;*
 - 2. *The destruction or damage to such building decreased its value by five hundred dollars (\$500.00) or more;*
 - 3. *The destruction or damage to such building rendered it unfit for use and occupancy for thirty (30) or more days during the calendar year; and*
 - 4. *The owner of such building (or the owner's agent) makes application to the commissioner of the revenue for the abatement within six (6) months of the date on which the building was razed, destroyed, or damaged.*
- (b) *In the following tax year, the provisions of Section 58.1-3293 of the Code of Virginia shall determine the proper assessment and levy.*

- 5. *The foregoing amendment is enabled by Virginia Code section 58.1-3222.*

The vote on this motion was as follows: (5-0)

<i>Ms. Mumpower</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Owens</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Ms. Price</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Reynolds</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Straten</i>	<i>Aye</i>

- e. Public Hearing and Consideration of Adoption of an Ordinance to Amend Chapter 66 of the Code of the County of Washington, Virginia to Add Section 14-9 and to Amend Section 68-98 to Allow Waiver of Fees for Permits Necessary for Repair or Replacement of Structures Damaged or Destroyed by Events that Cause Declaration of Local or State Emergency

Ms. Phillips provided introductory remarks. The proposed ordinance would authorize the County Administrator to waive fees for zoning review and building permits involving the restoration or replacement of structures that were damaged by a disaster that resulted in official declaration of local and state emergency. In May 2011, the Board adopted a resolution to waive fees for the same reasons as stated in the proposed ordinance, but the proposed ordinance would establish a generally applicable policy of waiver in the event of declaration of local and state emergency.

Ms. Mumpower opened the public hearing and invited comments in support of and in opposition to the proposed ordinance.

There being no comments, Ms. Mumpower declared the public hearing closed.

At this time, Commissioner of the Revenue David Henry addressed the Board on the Tax Abatement ordinance adopted by the Board. Mr. Henry explained the Commissioner's Office has received 97 applications to-date. At present time, Blue Ridge Appraisal is in the field looking at structures. They have not made a report back to his office on the tax figures. He noted that about 15 of the 97 applications will not qualify for tax abatement. Of the applicants that will qualify, the majority of structures have major damage and some destroyed. Mr. Henry advised the Board that citizens he has spoken with have all expressed gratitude to the Board.

On motion of Mr. Straten, second by Mr. Owens, the Board acted to adopt the following ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE

TO AMEND CHAPTER 66 OF THE CODE OF THE COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, VIRGINIA TO ADD SECTION 14-9 AND TO AMEND SECTION 68-98 TO ALLOW WAIVER OF FEES FOR PERMITS NECESSARY FOR REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT OF STRUCTURES DAMAGED OR DESTROYED BY EVENTS THAT CAUSE DECLARATION OF LOCAL OR STATE EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, the Code of the County of Washington, Virginia (2002, as amended) established fees for the issuance of permits for construction pursuant to the County Building Regulations and Zoning Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, a tornado in Washington County on April 28, 2011, caused extraordinary damage to structures – both residential and commercial – and resulted in declaration of a local and state emergency; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Washington, Virginia, desires to support the rebuilding and/or repair of structures detrimentally affected by natural disaster, such as the event of April 28, 2011.

NOW, THEREFORE, ON THE BASIS OF THE FOREGOING, and in the best interests of the public health, welfare, and safety, having held a public hearing for consideration of these matters, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Washington, Virginia (Board), hereby ordains the following:

1. *That this ordinance shall become effective immediately;*
2. *That should any section or provision of this ordinance be decided to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section or provision of this ordinance or the Washington County Code; and*
3. *That the following amendments shall be made to the Code of the County of Washington, Virginia (2002, as amended):*

Code of the County of Washington, Virginia (2002, as amended)

Chapter 14. – Buildings and Building Regulations

Article I. – New Construction

Section 14-9. Fee waiver in the event of declared emergency.

In the event of declaration of a local or state emergency, the county administrator shall have authority to waive fees that are ordinarily applied pursuant to this chapter for repair, removal, demolition, or replacement of structures that were damaged or destroyed by the event that gave rise to the declaration of emergency. Eligibility for fee waiver pursuant to this section shall expire no later than 24 months after the date of the event, or such earlier time as may be established by the county administrator and ratified by action of the board of supervisors.

Code of the County of Washington, Virginia (2002, as Amended)

Chapter 66 - Zoning

Article III – Permits and Variances

Division 2 – Zoning Permits and Certificate of Occupancy

Section 66-98. Zoning permit fees.

- (a) *A zoning permit fee as provided in the fee schedule in Appendix A to this Code shall be charged and collected together with the building permit fee and shall be used to offset cost of maintenance of zoning maps and files.*
- (b) *A zoning permit fee as provided in the fee schedule in Appendix A to this Code shall be charged for each application for rezoning and for issuance of a special use permit to defray the cost of registered mail and advertising required by the Code of Virginia and other costs associated with processing the application. However, rezoning and special use permit application fees shall be waived for construction and/or renovation of commercial and industrial structures located within the Washington County Enterprise Zone, as defined in this subsection. The Washington County Enterprise Zone shall mean the geographic area as defined by maps included as part of the enterprise zone designation application, which was approved by the Commonwealth, and as are maintained in the office of the county administrator. This exemption from rezoning and special use permit application fees shall be available for the life of the Washington County Enterprise Zone. A business shall be entitled to apply for reimbursement of any rezoning and special use permit application fees exempted under this subsection paid to the county after January 11, 2000.*
- (c) *In the event of declaration of a local or state emergency, the county administrator shall have authority to waive fees that are ordinarily applied pursuant to this chapter related to*

repair, removal, demolition, or replacement of structures, that were damaged or destroyed by the event that gave rise to the declaration of emergency. At the discretion of the county administrator, fees applicable to applications for rezoning of property or for special exception permit may not be waived where such applications are not legally necessary to effect restoration of structures or use of property to their original state or condition prior to the event that gave rise to the declaration of emergency. Eligibility for fee waiver pursuant to this section shall expire no later than 24 months after the date of the event, or such earlier time as may be established by the county administrator and ratified by action of the board of supervisors.

The vote on this motion was as follows: (5-0)

<i>Ms. Mumpower</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Owens</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Ms. Price</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Reynolds</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Straten</i>	<i>Aye</i>

- f. Public Hearing and Consideration of Adoption of an Ordinance to Amend Chapter 66 of the Code of the County of Washington, Virginia, to Add Section 66-169 to Provide for Repair or Replacement of Pre-Existing, Non-Conforming Structures Damaged or Destroyed by Natural Disaster

Ms. Phillips provided introductory remarks. The Ordinance would authorize issuance of a building permit to allow the owner of any such structure damaged or destroyed by a natural disaster to repair, rebuild, or replace such structure within a two-year period following declaration of local emergency or four year period following a federal disaster declaration that applies to the event that caused the damage. A form of this same ordinance was adopted on an emergency basis in May 2011, but state law requires for permanent enforcement that it be adopted again through standard procedures of advance public notice and hearing within sixty days of its adoption.

Mr. Reeter added this is a mandatory provision of local zoning ordinances in Virginia, which the present County Zoning Ordinance lacks.

Ms. Mumpower opened the public hearing and invited comments in support of and in opposition to the proposed ordinance.

There being no comments, Ms. Mumpower declared the public hearing closed.

On motion of Mr. Owens, second by Mr. Reynolds, the Board acted to adopt the following ordinance:

**AN ORDINANCE
TO AMEND CHAPTER 66
OF THE CODE OF THE COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, VIRGINIA,
TO ADD SECTION 66-169
TO PROVIDE FOR REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT OF PRE-EXISTING, NON-
CONFORMING STRUCTURES DAMAGED OR DESTROYED BY NATURAL DISASTER**

WHEREAS, the Code of the County of Washington, Virginia (2002, as amended) restricts the permissibility of repair and replacement of structures that are otherwise legal but do not conform to regulations of the County Zoning Ordinance either as of the date of adoption of the Zoning Ordinance on December 31, 1971, or thereafter as a result of subsequent amendments to the Zoning Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, section 15.2-2307 of the Code of Virginia (1950, as amended) requires that in the event of natural disaster the restrictions of local zoning ordinances regarding repair and replacement of pre-existing, non-conforming structures shall be waived within specified parameters; and

WHEREAS, having this waiver in place has become of particular significance due to the extraordinary storm and tornado damage of April 28, 2011.

NOW, THEREFORE, ON THE BASIS OF THE FOREGOING, and in the best interests of the public health, welfare, and safety, having held a public hearing for consideration of these matters, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Washington, Virginia (Board), hereby ordains the following:

- 1. That this ordinance shall become effective immediately;*
- 2. That this ordinance shall repeal and replace the ordinance to enact Section 66-169 adopted by the Board on an emergency basis on May 3, 2011;*
- 3. That should any section or provision of this ordinance be decided to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section or provision of this ordinance or the Washington County Code; and*
- 4. That Chapter 66 shall be amended by adding section 66-169, as follows:*

[Portion of page intentionally blank. Text of amendment is on following page.]

Code of the County of Washington, Virginia (2002, as amended)
Chapter 66. - Zoning
Article IV. – Non-Conforming Uses

Section 66-169. Natural disaster and pre-existing, non-conforming structure repair, rebuilding, or replacement.

For purposes of this section, "act of God" shall include any natural disaster or phenomena including a hurricane, tornado, storm, flood, high water, wind-driven water, tidal wave, earthquake or fire caused by lightning or wildfire. For purposes of this section, owners of property damaged by an accidental fire have the same rights to rebuild such property as if it were damaged by an act of God. Nothing herein shall be construed to enable the property owner to commit an arson under §18.2-77 or 18.2-80, and obtain vested rights under this section.

- a. *The owner of any residential or commercial building damaged or destroyed by a natural disaster or other act of God, who owned such building at the time of such natural disaster, may repair, rebuild, or replace such building to eliminate or reduce the nonconforming features to the extent possible, without the need to obtain a variance as provided in §66-136.*
 - b. *If such building is damaged greater than fifty (50%) percent and cannot be repaired, rebuilt or replaced except to restore it to its original nonconforming condition, the owner shall have the right to do so.*
 - c. *The owner shall apply for a building permit and any work done to repair, rebuild or replace such building shall be in compliance with the provisions of the Uniform Statewide Building Code (Va. Code §36-97 et seq.), and any work done to repair, rebuild or replace such building shall be in compliance with the provisions of the local flood plain regulations adopted as a condition of participation in the National Flood Insurance Program.*
 - d. *Unless such building is repaired, rebuilt or replaced within two (2) years of the date of the natural disaster or other act of God, such building shall only be repaired, rebuilt or replaced in accordance with the provisions of the zoning ordinance of the locality. However, if the nonconforming building is in an area under a federal disaster declaration and the building has been damaged or destroyed as a direct result of conditions that gave rise to the declaration, then an additional two (2) years is allowed for the building to be repaired, rebuilt or replaced as otherwise provided in this section.*
5. *The foregoing amendment is enabled by Section 15.2-2307 of the Code of Virginia (1950, as amended).*

The vote on this motion was as follows: (5-0)

<i>Ms. Mumpower</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Owens</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Ms. Price</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Reynolds</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Straten</i>	<i>Aye</i>

6. General Business:

a. Actionable Items:

1. Consideration of Resolution Adopting County Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2011-2012

Mr. Seamon presented the Resolution adopting the County Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2011-2012 for Board consideration. The Resolution also establishes rates for all taxes levied.

Ms. Price discussed recent articles in the newspaper about the people in Glade Spring who have a lot of rebuilding to do without the resources. One article quoted the United Way Director as saying there is a “to do” list of things to be done to restore people to homes that will cost around \$2,000,000.00. These are items that are not funded at this point. Ms. Price proposed the Board consider as a temporary measure, allocating the money set aside for renovations to the County Government Center for no interest, or low interest loans or advancement of funds that would come back to the County. The County Offices could still move into the building without the renovations being done. The renovations could be delayed until the County has the money in hand. This would be a means to provide money immediately to the people in need.

Lengthy discussions ensued among the Board concerning the proposal made by Ms. Price.

Mr. Straten explained it is his suggestion that United Way Director Travis Staton bring a recommendation to the Board if such funding is needed.

Responding to an inquiry, Ms. Phillips explained she does not know of any authority the County has to lend to private individuals.

Mr. Reeter added that he knows of no direct authority the County has to lend. However, the County could make a direct contribution to the United Way, and allow their programs to disburse funds to those in need.

Mr. Reeter discussed the Community Development Block Grant Project the County is working on that will provide about \$700,000 to assist people rebuild.

Ms. Price commented that she was not implying that the County donates funds to the United Way. Her proposal is as a temporary measure for the County to take the funds set aside for the renovations of the County Government Center to provide cash flow to assist those in need to rebuild.

Further discussions ensued.

Mr. Straten proposed this request be brought back before the Board at a later meeting to allow the Board to get more information, and to have Mr. Staton available.

Mr. Owens commented the County has demonstrated a real willingness to assist the community of Glade Spring. County Emergency Management Director Pokey Harris has worked long and hard on developing a conduit to help the people of Glade Springs. The County has done about as much as they can to help at this point. Also, Travis Staton is doing an outstanding job; if he feels the County can help he will make it known.

Ms. Mumpower stated the Board will receive a report later in the meeting about the disaster recovery. It is amazing what has happened in Washington County. There have been a lot of negative things printed in the newspaper, but a lot of positive things have happened from the Long Term Recovery Group.

On motion of Mr. Owens, second by Mr. Reynolds, the Board acted to adopt the following Resolution:

**RESOLUTION 2011-18
ADOPTION OF COUNTY OPERATING BUDGET
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011-2012
AND
ESTABLISHMENT OF VARIOUS TAX RATES
FOR
FISCAL YEAR 2011-2012**

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Washington, Virginia, has received budget requests from the County's officers and heads of departments, offices, divisions, boards, commissions, and agencies for preparation of the budget for fiscal year 2011-2012; and

WHEREAS, the Board has published notice of the proposed budget based on such requests, held a public hearing on the proposal, and considered the proposed budget in terms of the public health, safety, and welfare; and

WHEREAS, the Personal Property Tax Relief Act of 1998, Va. Code §§ 58.1-3523 et seq., was substantially modified by the enactment of Chapter 1 of the Acts of Assembly, 2004 Special Session I (Senate Bill 5005), and the provisions of Item 503 of Chapter 951 of the 2005 Acts of Assembly, to provide that the Commonwealth would appropriate to the County a fixed sum to be used exclusively for the provision of tax relief to owners of qualifying personal use vehicles that are subject to the personal property tax, and these legislative enactments required the County to provide for the computation and allocation of personal property tax relief in an amount estimated to exhaust the funds each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2011-06 adopted by the Board on March 22, 2011, a County-wide unit levy for general County purposes and school purposes of fifty-eight cents (\$0.58) per one hundred dollars (\$100.00) of assessed valuation of all taxable real estate, mobile home and public utilities at one hundred percent (100%) fair market value, excluding real estate devoted to agricultural, horticultural, forest and open space uses, as defined in Code of Virginia 58.1-3230, pursuant to Washington County Code 58-106; and a County-wide unit levy for general County purposes and school purposes of fifty-eight cents (\$0.58) per one hundred dollars (\$100.00) of assessed valuation of all taxable real estate devoted to agricultural, horticultural, forest and open space uses, as defined in Code of Virginia 58.1-3230, pursuant to Washington County Code 58-106 has been established for Tax Year 2011 of Fiscal Year 2011 - 2012, and

WHEREAS, the Commissioner of Revenue recommended to the Board a personal property tax relief schedule that was anticipated to exhaust Personal Property Tax Relief Act funds that the Commonwealth has allocated for Washington County for fiscal year 2011-2012.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Washington County, Virginia that the unit tax levies for fiscal year 2011-2012 are hereby set as follows:

A County-wide unit levy for general County purposes and school purposes of one dollar, fifty-five cents (\$1.55) per one hundred dollars (\$100.00) of assessed valuation of taxable tangible personal property at one hundred percent (100%) fair market value, excluding that which is listed in Section 58.1-3506(A)(13) of the Code of Virginia, as amended, pertaining to motor vehicles owned by volunteer rescue squad members or volunteer fire department members and subject to the terms of the Percentage of Personal Property Tax Relief set out below.

A County-wide unit levy for general County purposes and school purposes of five cents (\$.05) per one hundred dollars (\$100.00) of assessed valuation of taxable tangible personal property at one hundred percent (100%) fair market value listed in Section 58.1-3506(A)(13) of the Code of Virginia, as amended, pertaining to motor vehicles owned by volunteer rescue squad members or volunteer fire department members.

A County-wide unit levy for general County purposes and school purposes of one dollar, fifty-five cents (\$1.55) per one hundred dollars (\$100.00) of assessed valuation of taxable machinery and tools.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to the Personal Property Tax Relief Act and its amendments pursuant to the above-referenced Acts of Assembly, that qualifying vehicles obtaining situs within the County during Tax Year 2011, shall receive personal property tax relief in the following manner:

- 1. Personal use vehicles valued at \$1,000 or less will be eligible for 100% tax relief;***
- 2. Personal use vehicles valued at \$1,001 to \$20,000 will be eligible for 56% tax relief;***
- 3. Personal use vehicles valued at \$20,001 or more shall receive 56% tax relief only on the first \$20,000 of value; and***
- 4. All other vehicles that do not meet the definition of "qualifying" (business use vehicles, farm use vehicles, motor homes, etc.) will not be eligible for any form of tax relief under this program.***

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Fiscal Year 2011-2012 revenue and expenditures budgets are adopted at \$118,073,931 and the individual agency and departmental budgets are hereby approved for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2011, and extending to June 30, 2012 for the functions and purposes indicated hereafter.

**COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, VIRGINIA
ADOPTED REVENUE BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR 2011-2012**

FD 01 GENERAL FUND

10110	FUND BALANCE	\$ 3,809,067
11010	REAL PROPERTY TAXES	\$ 21,173,450
11020	PUBLIC SERV. CORP. TAXES	\$ 975,850
11030	PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES	\$ 5,371,400
11040	MACHINERY & TOOLS TAXES	\$ 2,600,125
11060	PENALTIES AND INTEREST	\$ 505,000
12010	LOCAL SALES AND USE TAXES	\$ 8,000,000
12020	CONSUMER'S UTILITY TAXES	\$ 1,125,000
12040	FRANCHISE LICENSE TAXES	\$ 165,000
12050	MOTOR VEHICLE TAXES	\$ 850,000
12060	BANK STOCK TAXES	\$ 31,000
12070	TAXES ON RECORDATION AND WILLS	\$ 277,000
12100	HOTEL & MOTEL ROOM TAXES	\$ 40,000
13010	ANIMAL LICENSES AND FEES	\$ 44,000
13030	PERMITS AND OTHER LICENSES	\$ 100,500
14010	FINES AND FORFEITURES	\$ 320,000
15010	REVENUE FROM USE OF MONEY	\$ 235,000
15020	REVENUE FROM USE OF PROPERTY	\$ 31,500
16010	COURT COSTS	\$ 26,000
16020	CHARGES FOR COMMONWEALTH'S ATTY	\$ 2,500
16030	CHARGES FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT	\$ 25,000
16050	CHARGES-CORRECTION & DETENTION	\$ 4,000
16060	CHARGES-TREASURER SERVICES	\$ 7,500
16080	CHARGES-SOLID WASTE REMOVAL	\$ 340,000
16130	CHARGES FOR PARKS & RECREATION	\$ 62,500
18010	PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES	\$ 49,571
18990	MISCELLANEOUS	\$ 10,000
19010	REFUNDS FROM OTHER AGENCIES	\$ 105,000
19030	MISCELLANEOUS RECOVERIES	\$ 401,500
22010	NON-CATEGORICAL AID	\$ 297,000
23010	COMMONWEALTH'S ATTORNEY	\$ 350,000
23020	SHERIFF	\$ 1,950,000
23030	COMMISSIONER OF REVENUE	\$ 137,500
23040	TREASURER	\$ 135,000
23060	REGISTRAR/ELECTORAL BOARD	\$ 25,000
23070	CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT	\$ 315,000
23080	EMERGENCY SERVICES	\$ 4,500
24010	WELFARE	\$ 5,738,704
24020	PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX RELIEF	\$ 2,559,286
24040	OTHER CATEGORICAL AID-STATE	\$ 310,000
31010	PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES	\$ 650,000
33090	OTHER CATEGORICAL AID-FEDERAL	\$ 10,000
41020	SALE OF LAND AND/OR BUILDINGS	\$ <u>0</u>

	TOTAL GENERAL FUND	\$ 59,169,453	
FD 02	FEDERAL ASSET SHARING FUND		
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$ 100,000	
33010	OTHER CATEGORICAL AID-FEDERAL	<u>\$ 0</u>	
	TOTAL FEDERAL ASSET SHARING FUND		\$ 100,000
FD 03	LAW LIBRARY FUND		
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$ 0	
16010	LAW LIBRARY	<u>\$ 12,000</u>	
	TOTAL LAW LIBRARY FUND		\$ 12,000
FD 04	ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND		
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$ 59,000	
16070	CHARGES FOR HIGHWAYS, STREETS, ETC.	<u>\$ 5,000</u>	
	TOTAL ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND		\$ 64,000
FD 05	CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND		
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$ 2,875,497	
15020	REVENUE FROM USE OF PROPERTY	\$ 420,000	
24040	OTHER STATE CATEGORICAL AID	<u>\$ 623,910</u>	
	TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND		\$ 3,919,407
FD 06	ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND		
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$ 0	
24040	OTHER STATE CATEGORICAL AID	<u>\$ 0</u>	
	TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND		\$ 0
FD 07	UTILITIES FUND		
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$ 50,000	
24040	OTHER STATE CATEGORICAL AID	<u>\$ 0</u>	
	TOTAL UTILITIES FUND		\$ 50,000

FD 08	TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT FUND		
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$	0
14010	FINES AND FORFEITURES	\$	<u>400,000</u>
	TOTAL TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT FUND	\$	400,000
FD 10	SPECIAL GRANT PROJECTS FUND		
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$	0
24040	OTHER CATEGORICAL AID-STATE	\$	<u>25,000</u>
	TOTAL SPECIAL GRANT PROJECTS FUND	\$	25,000
FD 25	DEBT SERVICE FUND		
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$	0
18030	EXPENDITURE REFUNDS	\$	<u>432,500</u>
	TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUND	\$	432,500
FD 108	COUNTY LIBRARY FUND		
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$	0
16150	CHARGES FOR COUNTY LIBRARY	\$	26,500
18990	MISCELLANEOUS	\$	25,000
24040	OTHER CATEGORICAL AID-STATE	\$	150,766
33040	OTHER CATEGORICAL AID-FEDERAL	\$	<u>0</u>
	TOTAL COUNTY LIBRARY FUND	\$	202,266
FD 206	VA. PUBLIC ASSISTANCE FUND		
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$	<u>0</u>
	TOTAL VA. PUBLIC ASSISTANCE FUND	\$	0
FD 207	COMPREHENSIVE SERVICES ACT FUND		
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$	<u>0</u>
	TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE SERVICES ACT FUND	\$	0
FD 312	GENERAL SCHOOL FUND		
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$	869,000
10000	LOCAL REVENUES	\$	2,060,570
20000	STATE REVENUES	\$	36,811,986
30000	FEDERAL REVENUES	\$	<u>6,226,099</u>

	TOTAL GENERAL SCHOOL FUND	\$ 46,037,655
FD 313	SCHOOL DEBT SERVICE FUND	
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$ <u>0</u>
	TOTAL SCHOOL DEBT SERVICE FUND	\$ 0
FD 315	SCHOOL TEXTBOOK FUND	
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$ 2,201,564
15010	REVENUE FROM USE OF MONEY	\$ 12,000
19010	RECOVERY OF TUITIONS	\$ 300
24020	CATEGORICAL AID-STATE	\$ <u>196,882</u>
	TOTAL SCHOOL TEXTBOOK FUND	\$ 2,410,746
FD 316	SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION FUND	
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$ 516,000
15010	REVENUE FROM USE OF MONEY	\$ 12,000
41030	SUBSIDY PROCEEDS	\$ 504,000
41040	PROCEEDS FROM INDETTEDNESS	\$ <u>0</u>
	TOTAL SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION FUND	\$ 1,032,000
FD 317	SCHOOL CAFETERIA FUND	
10110	FUND BALANCE	\$ 716,069
15010	REVENUE FROM USE OF MONEY	\$ 6,500
16120	CHARGES FOR EDUCATION	\$ 3,494,335
18030	EXPENDITURES REFUND	\$ 2,000
24040	OTHER CATEGORICAL AID-STATE	\$ <u>0</u>
	TOTAL SCHOOL CAFETERIA FUND	\$ <u>4,218,904</u>
	TOTAL ADOPTED REVENUE BUDGET	<u>\$118,073,931</u>

**WASHINGTON COUNTY, VIRGINIA
ADOPTED EXPENDITURE BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR 2011-2012**

FD 01 GENERAL FUND

11100	BOARD OF SUPERVISORS	\$ 172,549
12110	COUNTY ADMINISTRATION	\$ 328,625
12210	COUNTY ATTORNEY	\$ 271,063
12240	COUNTY AUDIT	\$ 67,500
12310	COMMISSIONER OF REVENUE	\$ 565,356
12320	ASSESSOR	\$ 150,000
12410	TREASURER	\$ 639,665
12430	ACCOUNTING	\$ 287,283
12510	INFORMATION SYSTEMS	\$ 663,530
13100	ELECTORAL BOARD	\$ 102,248
13200	GENERAL REGISTRAR	\$ 155,136
21100	CIRCUIT COURT-JUDGE	\$ 70,771
21200	GENERAL DISTRICT COURT	\$ 30,471
21300	SPECIAL MAGISTRATES	\$ 5,820
21600	JD & R COURT-CLERK'S OFFICE/JUDGE	\$ 14,175
21610	JD & R COURT-COURT SERVICES	\$ 7,200
21700	CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT	\$ 572,778
21910	VICTIM & WITNESS ASSISTANCE	\$ 58,907
22100	COMMONWEALTH'S ATTORNEY	\$ 761,141
31200	WCSO-SHERIFF OFFICE	\$ 1,277,065
31210	WCSO-TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT	\$ 400,000
31300	WCSO-PATROL DIVISION	\$ 1,255,296
31400	WCSO-DISPATCH & E-911 DIVISION	\$ 615,337
31500	WCSO-CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIVE DIVISION	\$ 535,676
31600	WCSO-COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION	\$ 648,268
31650	WCSO-COURT SECURITY DIVISION	\$ 256,908
31700	WCSO-LITTER CONTROL DIVISION	\$ 116,208
31710	WCSO-ANIMAL CONTROL DIVISION	\$ 261,869
31810	WCSO-VSTOP GRANT	\$ 46,435
32200	FIRE DEPARTMENTS	\$ 523,247
32210	FIRE DEPARTMENTS-PERSONNEL	\$ 90,000
32300	EMS DEPARTMENTS	\$ 318,775
32310	EMS DEPARTMENTS-PERSONNEL	\$ 150,000
32400	FIRE & RESCUE FACILITIES	\$ 600,000
33200	APPALACHIAN JUVENILE COMMISSION	\$ 190,444
33210	SW VA REGIONAL JAIL AUTHORITY	\$ 2,327,288
34100	BUILDING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES	\$ 391,386
35300	MEDICAL EXAMINER	\$ 1,000
35500	EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT	\$ 303,887
35600	VA WIRELESS E-911 GRANTS	\$ 0
42600	SOLID WASTE DEPARTMENT	\$ 2,076,375
43200	GENERAL SERVICES-ADMINISTRATION	\$ 798,505
43210	GENERAL SERVICES-GCB	\$ 56,696

43220	GENERAL SERVICES-TREASURER	\$	19,850
43230	GENERAL SERVICES-CSB	\$	108,150
43240	GENERAL SERVICES-COURTHOUSE	\$	155,900
43250	GENERAL SERVICES-PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG	\$	113,500
43260	GENERAL SERVICES-VALLEY ST BLDG	\$	12,318
43270	GENERAL SERVICES-ANIMAL CONTROL	\$	11,505
43290	GENERAL SERVICES-OTHER	\$	41,000
51100	COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT	\$	487,248
52200	MENTAL HEALTH&RETARDATION	\$	331,482
53210	PARENT AIDE SERVICES GRANT`	\$	5,383
53220	STATE-LOCAL HOSPITALIZATION	\$	0
53230	AREA AGENCY ON AGING	\$	44,927
53250	INDIGENT CARE-OTHER	\$	5,000
53700	COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY	\$	101,961
53800	UNITED WAY	\$	256,990
53810	UNITED WAY-COMMUNITY CENTERS	\$	110,694
66000	COMMUNITY COLLEGES	\$	81,393
66100	OTHER EDUCATION CONTRIBUTIONS	\$	0
71110	RECREATION DEPARTMENT	\$	186,292
71320	RECREATION DEPT-LEO SHOLES PARK	\$	38,757
71330	RECREATION DEPT-BEAVERDAM	\$	5,570
71340	WASH COUNTY PARK AUTHORITY	\$	41,300
71345	RECREATION -OTHER PARKS	\$	8,730
71600	RECREATION PROGRAMS-TOWNS	\$	50,000
71700	ATHLETIC GROUP ACTIVITIES	\$	46,820
72700	CULTURAL ENRICHMENT	\$	136,220
81100	ZONING ADMINISTRATION	\$	133,366
81110	PLANNING ACTIVITIES-REGIONAL	\$	42,956
81120	WC PLANNING COMMISSION & BZA	\$	24,007
81500	COMMUNITY & ECON DEVELOPMENT	\$	193,187
81510	ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES	\$	206,431
81520	WC INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY	\$	0
81530	SMYTH/WASH INDUSTRIAL FACILITY AUTHORITY	\$	97,650
82400	SOIL & WATER CONS DISTRICT	\$	31,105
82600	LAND CONSERVATION	\$	30,000
83100	COUNTY EXTENSION PROGRAM	\$	117,506
91400	RESERVE FOR CONTINGENCIES	\$	386,730
91410	RESERVE FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS	\$	121,325
91420	INTERGOVERNMENTAL PAYMENTS	\$	292,200
92100	REVENUE REFUNDS	\$	0
92200	EXPENDITURE ADJUSTMENTS	\$	<u>0</u>
	TOTAL GENERAL FUND		\$ 22,242,336
FD 02	FEDERAL ASSET SHARING FUND		
22800	COMMONWEALTH'S ATTY FASP ACCT-STATE	\$	0
22810	COMMONWEALTH'S ATTY FASP ACCT-FEDERAL	\$	0
31800	SHERIFF'S FASP ACCT-STATE	\$	0

31810	SHERIFF'S FASP ACCT-FEDERAL	<u>\$ 100,000</u>	
	TOTAL FEDERAL ASSET SHARING FUND		\$ 100,000
FD 03	WASH. CO. LAW LIBRARY FUND		\$ 12,000
FD 04	ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND		
93150	LIGHTING, SIGNAGE & SIGNALIZATION	\$ 10,000	
93190	OTHER IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS	<u>\$ 54,000</u>	
	TOTAL ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND		\$ 64,000
FD 05	CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND		
94111	COUNTY FACILITIES-ADMINISTRATION	\$ 1,824,122	
94131	COUNTY FACILITIES-PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG	\$ 736,336	
94141	COUNTY FACILITIES-SOLID WASTE	\$ 25,000	
94142	COUNTY FACILITIES-SOLID WASTE VEHICLES	\$ 100,000	
94143	COUNTY FACILITIES-SOLID WASTE EQUIPMENT	\$ 120,000	
94149	COUNTY FACILITIES-PROGRAMMING	\$ 25,000	
94196	COUNTY FACILITIES-PRESERVATION PRJ	\$ 0	
94311	LIBRARIES-MAIN BRANCH	\$ 115,000	
94321	LIBRARIES-DAMASCUS BRANCH PRJ	\$ 1,318,410	
94330	LIBRARIES-GLADE SPRING BRANCH PRJ	\$ 0	
94533	RECREATION-BEAVERDAM CREEK PARK PRJ	\$ 82,500	
94819	CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS-MAJOR	\$ 0	
94829	CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS-MINOR	\$ 50,000	
94911	CAPITAL RESERVES-GENERAL	\$ 163,039	
94921	CAPITAL RESERVES-SCHOOLS	\$ 0	
94990	CAPITAL RESERVES-OTHER	<u>\$ 0</u>	
	TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND		\$ 4,559,407
FD 06	ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND		
95111	IDA-OAK PARK DEVELOPMENT	\$ 270,894	
95112	SWIFA-HIGHLANDS PARK DEV	\$ 0	
95121	IDA-THE HIGHLANDS DEVELOPMENT	\$ 457,520	
95131	IDA-PERFORMANCE AGREEMENTS	\$ 150,000	
95141	VIRGINIA HIGHLANDS AIRPORT AUTHORITY	\$ 145,300	
95151	JOINT ECON DEVELOP STUDY-ABINGDON	\$ 0	
95161	COUNTY OPPORTUNITY ACCOUNT	<u>\$ 200,000</u>	
	TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND		\$ 1,223,714

FD 07	UTILITIES FUND		
98100	FEES & CONTRIBUTIONS	\$ 50,000	
98200	PURCHASES & SUBSIDIES	\$ 35,000	
98400	WCSA-SEWER PROJECTS	<u>\$ 0</u>	
	TOTAL UTILITIES FUND		\$ 85,000
FD 08	TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT FUND		
31210	WCSO-TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT	<u>\$ 400,000</u>	
	TOTAL TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT FUND		\$ 400,000
FD 10	SPECIAL GRANT PROJECTS FUND		
95410	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANTS	\$ 25,000	
95420	APPALACHIAN REGIONAL COMMISSION	\$ 0	
95490	OTHER GRANT PROJECTS	<u>\$ 0</u>	
	TOTAL SPECIAL GRANT PROJECTS FUND		\$ 25,000
FD 25	DEBT SERVICE FUND		\$ 2,492,751
FD 108	COUNTY LIBRARY FUND		
73100	LIBRARY ADMIN LOCAL	\$ 1,064,196	
73300	LIBRARY ADMIN STATE & FED AID	\$ 150,766	
73400	BRANCH LIBRARY LOCAL-DAMASCUS	\$ 95,071	
73500	BRANCH LIBRARY LOCAL-MENDOTA	\$ 49,119	
73600	BRANCH LIBRARY LOCAL-GLADE	\$ 79,818	
73700	BRANCH LIBRARY-HAYTER'S GAP	\$ 55,454	
73900	LIBRARY GRANTS & ENDOWMENTS	<u>\$ 25,000</u>	
	TOTAL COUNTY LIBRARY FUND		\$ 1,519,424
FD 206	VA PUBLIC ASSISTANCE FUND		
53100	WELFARE ADMINISTRATION	\$ 3,084,897	
53200	PUBLIC ASSISTANCE & S.S. PROGRAMS	<u>\$ 2,608,546</u>	
	TOTAL VA PUBLIC ASSISTANCE FUND		\$ 5,693,443
FD 207	COMMUNITY SERVICES ACT FUND		\$ 1,623,271
FD 312	GENERAL SCHOOL FUND		\$ 69,084,124
FD 313	SCHOOL DEBT SERVICE FUND		\$ 0

6-14-11 17691

<i>FD 315</i>	<i>SCHOOL TEXTBOOK FUND</i>	<i>\$ 2,519,490</i>
<i>FD 316</i>	<i>SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION FUND</i>	<i>\$ 2,211,067</i>
<i>FD 317</i>	<i>SCHOOL CAFETERIA FUND</i>	<i><u>\$ 4,218,904</u></i>
	<i>TOTAL ADOPTED EXPENDITURE BUDGET</i>	<i><u>\$118,073,931</u></i>

**GENERAL FUND TRANSFERS
FISCAL YEAR 2011-2012**

TO ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND	\$ 0
TO CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND	\$ 630,000
TO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND	\$ 1,223,714
TO UTILITIES FUND	\$ 35,000
TO DEBT SERVICE FUND	\$ 2,060,251
TO COUNTY LIBRARY FUND	\$ 1,348,904
TO VA PUBLIC ASSISTANCE FUND	\$ 5,732,881
TO COMPREHENSIVE SERVICES ACT FUND	\$ 1,623,271
TO GENERAL SCHOOL FUND	\$ 23,046,469
TO SCHOOL DEBT SERVICE FUND	\$ 0
TO SCHOOL TEXTBOOK FUND	\$ 108,744
TO SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION FUND	<u>\$ 1,179,067</u>
 TOTAL GENERAL FUND TRANSFERS	 <u>\$ 36,988,301</u>

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the approval of this budget shall not constitute an appropriation of funds.

The vote on this motion was as follows: (4-1)

<i>Ms. Mumpower</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Owens</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Ms. Price</i>	<i>Nay</i>
<i>Mr. Reynolds</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Straten</i>	<i>Aye</i>

2. Consideration of Renewal of Lease Agreement between County and Mendota Community Association for Mendota Community Center

Mr. Owens addressed the Board regarding the lease between the County and Mendota Community Association (MCA) on the old Hamilton School Building for the Mendota Community Center. The initial lease period was for three years with the lease stating the MCA was to maintain the generator at the building, and further the generator is to be used in the event that an emergency shelter is opened in the building. Since the time the initial lease went into effect, the emergency shelter has been moved from Mendota to Valley Institute Elementary School. Most shelters are located in schools because they have cafeterias and room for bedding. Consequently, the generator at the Mendota Community Center has been moved to Valley Institute. Citizens are best served by moving the emergency shelter to Valley Institute Elementary School.

Mr. Owens requested the lease between the County and MCA be renewed for one year, and revised to take out language speaking to use of the building as an emergency shelter, and the generator. At the end of the one year lease, the situation could be reviewed to determine if the lease should be renewed for another year.

Ms. Phillips explained the lease may be modified, but must be done so in writing, and in agreement of both the Board and MCA. Should the Board not be satisfied with the revised lease agreement from MCA,

the lease states the Board may terminate the lease by written notice sixty days in advance of the date of termination.

On motion of Mr. Owens, second by Mr. Straten, the Board acted to authorize the County Attorney to work with the Mendota Community Association on a revised one year lease of the Hamilton School Building to be used for the Mendota Community Center.

The vote on this motion was as follows: (5-0)

<i>Ms. Mumpower</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Owens</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Ms. Price</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Reynolds</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Straten</i>	<i>Aye</i>

3. Consideration of Appointments to Various Boards, Authorities and Commissions Expiring June 30, 2011

Washington County Public Library Board of Trustees

On motion of Mr. Straten, second by Ms. Price, the Board acted to reappoint James W. Cartwright to represent the Taylor Election District on the Washington County Public Library Board of Trustees for a four year term beginning July 1, 2011, and expiring June 30, 2015.

The vote on this motion was as follows: (5-0)

<i>Ms. Mumpower</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Owens</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Ms. Price</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Reynolds</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Straten</i>	<i>Aye</i>

Highlands Community Services Board

Mr. Owens asked the Board to be thinking of an appointee that would represent the consumer area.

Washington County Industrial Development Authority

On motion of Mr. Straten, second by Mr. Reynolds, the Board acted to appoint Mark Nelson to fill the unexpired term of Russell Owens as the Monroe District representative on the Industrial Development Authority of Washington County. The term shall be effective July 1, 2011 and expire November 13, 2011.

The vote on this motion was as follows: (5-0)

<i>Ms. Mumpower</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Owens</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Ms. Price</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Reynolds</i>	<i>Aye</i>

Mr. Straten *Aye*

b. Information Items:

1. Presentation Concerning Solar Power Generation

The Board received a PowerPoint Presentation on solar power generation from Mr. Jack Mason.

Scrivener's Note: The PowerPoint Presentation referenced above is included as Minutes Exhibits Item 2011-06-14-B.

2. Update on April 27-28 Storm Disaster Recovery Efforts

Deputy County Administrator Nadine Culberson addressed the Board and provided an update on the April 27-28 storm disaster recovery efforts.

Ms. Culberson began the presentation by commending Emergency Management Director Pokey Harris for the exceptional job she is and has performed for the County, and its citizens with disaster recovery efforts. Ms. Harris has been the subject of unmerited negative publicity in a recent newspaper article. She is doing the job she was hired and paid to do.

Ms. Culberson provided the following report:

- Awaiting decision on FEMA appeal
- Total of combined donations to date
 - Approximately \$400K
 - Estimated expenditures to date \$50K
- Family Assistance/Case Management
 - DSS providing intake and case management
 - 110 cases to date, ranging from assistance with food and gas, transportation, home repairs, and home rebuild
- Construction
 - 47 requesters for assistance ranging from damaged with insurance to destroyed with no insurance
 - Completed
 - 2 Homes – complete roof and windows
 - 1 Home - materials for basement portion of home
 - In Process
 - 1 home - ground Up /Rebuild
 - 1 home – complete roof
 - Assigned with start date scheduled
 - 2 homes – complete roofs
 - Materials provided
 - 1 home – roofing
 - 2 mobile home replacements in process

- Distribution Center and Warehouse Opened on May 31 (items to warehouse the week of 22nd)
 - 77 families served to date (22 repeats)
 - 87 volunteer days (some people have given up to 12 days)
 - Beginning to see less demand for non-perishable food and supplies
 - Coordinating donations of furniture and appliances with DSS for distribution
 - Volunteers took water, ice, and food out on Saturday to all impacted areas
- State Disaster Fund (\$700)
 - 24 Applications to date
 - 10 awaiting final approval for award for a total of \$46K
- Agricultural
 - LTRG is coordinating with Extension Office (Phil Blevins) and FSA to provide assistance
 - Collaborating with DOC to provide detainee labor to install fencing
 - Awaiting determination from Secretary of Commerce regarding declaration

Ms. Mumpower commended the work of Ms. Harris, and the Long Term Disaster Recovery Group. She stated that recovery takes time; it will take time to rebuild and help the citizens in need. From the report given, it is evident that people are being helped and homes being rebuilt.

7. Board Member Reports

Ms. Mumpower reported on a telephone call she received last week from Governor McDonnell. Governor McDonnell is actively working to bring money to the County to assist with disaster recovery. He commended the Long Term Disaster Recovery Group, the leadership of the County, volunteers and church organizations that have worked so diligently on disaster recovery.

Ms. Mumpower further reported on a telephone call from Secretary of Public Safety Marla Decker. Secretary Decker passed on the Governor's remarks of how impressed they are with the fact that County Government, staff and people in the community stepped up to assist people with disaster recovery.

At this time, Deputy County Administrator Nadine Culberson addressed the Board and announced that the Mountain Empire Regional GIS (MERG) Project received the Southwest Virginia Technology Council Award. Ms. Culberson explained the MERG project is gaining recognition. The project began with six localities; Lee, Russell, Smyth, Scott, Washington and City of Bristol. Wise and Dickenson Counties, and the City of Norton have now joined. The project has been nominated by the Secretary of Technology for several national awards, and nominated for the Governor's Technology Award that will be given during the Virginia Association of Counties annual conference in November.

8. Board Information and Reminders

Mr. Reeter reviewed Board information and reminders.

9. Closed Meeting:

- a. Request to convene in Closed Meeting pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-3711(A)(5) for discussion concerning prospective business or industry or the expansion of an existing business or industry where no previous announcement has been made of the business' or industry's interest in locating or expanding its facilities in the community; specifically an existing industry within the Bristol/Washington County Industrial Park**

On motion of Mr. Owens, second by Mr. Straten, the Board acted to convene in Closed Meeting pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-3711(A)(5) for discussion concerning prospective business or industry or the expansion of an existing business or industry where no previous announcement has been made of the business' or industry's interest in locating or expanding its facilities in the community; specifically an existing industry within the Bristol/Washington County Industrial Park. It was further resolved to include County Administrator Mark Reeter, County Attorney Lucy Phillips and Assistant County Administrator Christy Parker in the Closed Meeting.

The vote on this motion was as follows: (5-0)

<i>Ms. Mumpower</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Owens</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Ms. Price</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Reynolds</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Straten</i>	<i>Aye</i>

A brief recess was taken before entering closed session.

b. Reconvene in Open Meeting and Certification of Closed Meeting

After returning to the meeting, the Chairperson noted that upon motion of Ms. Price, second by Mr. Reynolds and favorable vote, the Board of Supervisors reconvened in open meeting. The Chairperson called for any participant in the closed meeting(s) who believed that there was a departure from the requirements of the Virginia Freedom of Information Act during the closed meeting(s), to state the substance of the departure that they believed took place. No members of the Board responded to the Chairperson's call for statements.

On motion of Mr. Owens, second by Ms. Price, the members of the Board certified the closed meeting(s) in accordance with the requirements of the Virginia Freedom of Information Act. By vote in favor of this motion, each member certified that the closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law, and that only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements and identified in the motion by which the closed meeting was convened was heard, discussed, or considered in the closed meeting.

The vote on this motion was as follows: (5-0)

<i>Ms. Mumpower</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Owens</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Ms. Price</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Reynolds</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Straten</i>	<i>Aye</i>

10. Adjourn or Recess

On motion of Ms. Price, second by Mr. Reynolds, it was resolved to adjourn the meeting.

The vote on this motion was as follows: (5-0)

<i>Ms. Mumpower</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Owens</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Ms. Price</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Reynolds</i>	<i>Aye</i>
<i>Mr. Straten</i>	<i>Aye</i>

Prepared by:

Naoma A. Norris, Recording Clerk

Approved by the Washington County Board of Supervisors:

Dulcie M. Mumpower, Chairman